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This eighth Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) provides 
an overview of BJWSA’s accomplishments and financial performance 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. Despite the continuation of 
a slow-to-no-growth situation and the sluggish economy that has 
prevailed for nearly three years, BJWSA posted positive financial 
results for fiscal year 2011. Revenues exceeded projections by 
$1.1 million, while operating expenses trailed the budget by $171 

thousand. During the year, BJWSA completed a number of important initiatives and continued to 
renew and restore aging pieces of infrastructure. The year also saw the beginning of a transition 
in leadership as my term as General Manager began to draw to an end.

A key accomplishment has been completion of the project to consolidate wastewater treatment 
and disposal from Parris Island and MCAS Beaufort into BJWSA’s Port Royal Island Water 
Reclamation Facility. Planning for this project began in 1995 and the implications of its completion 
are substantial. Water quality in the Beaufort River will be improved and historically closed shell 
fishing areas may be reopened. Reclamation and reuse of the military wastewater has been made 
possible and is occurring on the Secession Club Golf Course. All customers, both military and 
civilian, will benefit financially from the economies of scale achieved by this consolidation.

Our Vision
Beaufort-Jasper Water and 
Sewer Authority will be the 

safest, most efficient, effective, 
and professional water and 

sewer utility in South Carolina. 
We will provide superior 

customer service and affordable, 
reliable water and sewer 

services in an environmentally 
sound manner to meet 

the needs of all Beaufort and 
Jasper County citizens.

Our Mission 
The mission of the  

Beaufort-Jasper Water and 
Sewer Authority is to protect 

the public health and the 
environment by providing, 

on a non-profit basis, to the 
residents, businesses, and land 
owners within its service area: 

• Affordable, High  
Quality Drinking Water

• Environmentally Sound, 
Affordable Wastewater 
Treatment and Disposal

• Efficient, Reliable, and 
Courteous Service

MESSAGE FROM THE 
GENERAL MANAGER
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Extensive improvements have been made to the 
infrastructure serving all of the military bases 
with the elimination of over ___ wastewater pump 
stations, the replacement of valves and meters, 
and restoration underway for thousands of feet of old wastewater collection lines. These 
improvements will significantly improve the operational efficiency of our large systems, 
benefitting all of BJWSA’s customers. Projects were initiated in FY2011 to replace antiquated 
water lines in the City of Beaufort and restore wastewater collection lines at several different 
locations in the service area.

BJWSA developed or continued partnerships with the Town of Bluffton, Beaufort County 
Council, Jasper County Council, and the Town of Port Royal to install new water and 
wastewater lines for low-to-moderate income communities across the service area. These 
projects will continue in FY2012, along with other projects that are under consideration or 
development.

This CAFR is my last as General Manager; I will be retiring from BJWSA shortly after its 
publication. Over twenty-five years, I have seen BJWSA evolve from a small, primarily 
wholesale, water utility with 2,000 retail water customers and a value of $5.2 million into a 
large regional water and wastewater utility serving seven wholesale customers, over 45,000 
retail customers, and with an asset value of over $475 million.

From the beginning, prudent financial management has been a priority of the BJWSA’s 
management and board. BJWSA received it first Certificate of Excellence in Financial 
Reporting in 2003 and has done so annually ever since. Much of BJWSA’s historic financial 
success has been due to very competent controllers and chief financial officers and the 
excellent leadership of the Board of Directors. Long-term success in the utility business 
requires a willingness to control costs, sustain revenues, and measure appropriate metrics. 
BJWSA has generally been good at doing all those things, as evidenced by its excellent and 
steadily increasing bond ratings.

I leave BJWSA knowing that it is in excellent financial condition and that the very competent 
financial and operational staff, coupled with the careful oversight by the Board of Directors, 
will ensure that it remains so well into the future.

Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer 
Authority will work to realize its 
vision and accomplish its mission 
always in accordance with the 
following values:

• Accountability We are proudly 
responsible for everything we  
do or say.

• Communication We regularly 
share facts, opinions, and 
perspectives with each other  
and our customers.

• Customer Service We always 
treat our customers as we  
would want to be treated.

• Efficiency We waste neither 
time nor money.

• Environmental Stewardship  
We at all times protect the  
area’s environment.

• Fairness The same rules and 
opportunities apply to everyone.

• Honesty We always tell the  
truth to ourselves and to others.

• Integrity We do what is right, 
every time.

• Quality We produce the best 
possible product from every job.

• Safety We protect ourselves,  
our coworkers, and the public at 
all times.

• Teamwork We work together 
to accomplish our mission and 
realize our vision.

Taken together, these values define 
professionalism; the signature 
value of the Beaufort-Jasper Water 
and Sewer Authority.

Our Values
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While the 2011 fiscal year saw a modest upward trend in revenues due to the dry weather, 
growth and development still remain slow in the current economic environment. Despite this 
BJWSA continues to operate a self-sustaining business enterprise that provides superior 
customer service and affordable, reliable water and sewer services in an environmentally 
sound manner to meet the needs of its customers. Our facilities continue to win state and 
national awards demonstrating BJWSA’s high standard of excellence in its operations. 

HIGHLIGHTS & INITIATIVES

Outstanding Performance 

Association of Metropolitan Water Agencies’ 2011 Platinum Award for Utility Excellence for the 
strong record of effective utility management that shows achievement in the areas of leadership, 
strategic business planning, organizational approaches, measurement, and a continual improvement 

management framework.

South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (SCDHEC) Facilities 
Excellence Award for achieving excellence in all aspects of operations, meeting or 
exceeding compliance expectations, and environmental protection at our wastewater 
treatment plants and water reclamation facility.

Annual SCDHEC Sanitary Survey completion with no deficiencies detected for the sixth 
consecutive year. The survey is an evaluation of critical components of the water system, 
including treatment plants, wells, tank sites, booster pump stations, and distribution 
system operations. 

EPA Phase III Partnership for Safe Drinking Water Director’s Award for achieving 
water quality standards that exceed both state and federal mandates at our water 
treatment plants.

The Purrysburg plant is currently working towards the EPA’s Phase IV Partnership 
designation, and the Chelsea plant is working towards Phase IV Partnership eligibility. 
The Phase IV Excellence in Water Treatment Award is the highest possible level of 
performance that can be achieved in the Partnership program, and is considered the 
pinnacle award for water treatment plants.

SCDHEC Area Wide Optimization Program (AWOP) Award for continual production 
of superior quality water. Chelsea Water Treatment Plant has earned this award for 
nine consecutive years; Purrysburg Water Treatment Plant every year since it became 

operational seven years ago. 

National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) Peak Performance Award for 
outstanding compliance with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits 
throughout the year.

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, the highest form of recognition 
in governmental accounting and financial reporting. BJWSA has received this award for seven 
consecutive years.

U.S. EPA Region 4, 2010 
Consumer Confidence Report 

Excellence Award for water 
systems providing customers 
with exemplary water quality 

reports. This is the fourth time 
BJWSA has earned this award. 
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Milestone at Military Bases

BJWSA has completed a military consolidation project, marking a milestone in a partnership with 
local military utilities. In 2008, BJWSA assumed ownership, operations, and maintenance of the 
water and wastewater systems at the Marine Corps Air Station (MCAS), 
Laurel Bay Housing, the Naval Hospital Beaufort, and the Marine Corps 
Recruit Depot Parris Island. The consolidation project shut down and 
eliminated the Parris Island and MCAS wastewater treatment facilities and 
diverted those flows to the Port Royal Island Water Reclamation Facility 
(PRIWRF) for much higher levels of treatment before discharge or reuse to 
irrigate a local golf course. 

BJWSA has made significant improvements to military water and 
wastewater systems that ensure the delivery of clean drinking water and 
advanced collection and treatment of wastewater. After reviewing BJWSA’s 
performance in regards to the consolidation project and our operations 
of the military utilities, BJWSA was awarded a “very good on all levels” 
rating in the military’s Contractor Performance Assessment Report for the 
first two-year contract period. The Initial System Modification projects are 
scheduled to reach completion in 2012. These projects in conjunction with 
the consolidation project completed in 2011 provide the military installations 
with a more reliable, sustainable water and wastewater systems.

Progress Through Partnership 

Working in partnership to provide needed infrastructure and services 
maximizes efficiency, cost-effectiveness, and the quality of life for citizens. 
BJWSA continues to extend water and sewer services to many deserving 
communities by partnering with local and county governments, the 
Lowcountry Council of Governments (LCOG) regional planning agency, and 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. Through the 
CDBG program, BJWSA is able to bring water and wastewater services to 
communities with a high percentage of low-to-moderate income residents, 
often in rural areas.

In fiscal year 2011, BJWSA completed the Dale CDBG grant project. This 
three-phase project made potable water available to over 200 residents, 
many of whom have experienced well water quality issues from their 
privately owned well. The Bluffton CDBG project – which extends both 
water and sewer service – continues to make progress, with an anticipated 
completion in 2012. BJWSA is committed to other CDBG grant projects, 
including waterline extensions in Beaufort’s Burton area and sanitary sewer 
service in the Purrysburg community of Jasper County.

The military consolidation project, 
completed in 2011, provides the 
military with a more reliable and 
sustainable wastewater system, 
along with being better for Beaufort’s 
marine environment.



Environmental Stewardship

BJWSA and its staff continue to serve in leadership roles for the preservation of water resources 
and water quality at regional, state, and national levels. Staff members hold board positions 
in numerous organizations, including the Governor’s Water Committee, the Savannah River 
Maritime Commission, the Water Utility Council, and the S.C. Water Quality Association. Our 
staff participates in various regional groups committed to issues such as groundwater quality 
and local TMDL levels in the Savannah River. BJWSA is participating in the SC/GA Groundwater 
Management Group, which is addressing saltwater intrusion into groundwater sources. 

BJWSA served as a leader in reaching an agreement by consensus, not by legal action, which 
will reduce the permitted total wasteload discharged into Savannah River by 85 percent. A group 
comprised of 23 separate dischargers from August to the coast – ranging from public utilities 

to large private corporations – worked together on this initiative to 
promote and protect the health of the river. BJWSA also played a 
major role in negotiating the allocation between the discharges of the 
allowable reduced wasteload that the river can receive and still meet 
water quality standards. 

BJWSA has become a Charter Member of the EPA Partnership 
for Safe Water Distribution System Optimization Program, a new 
initiative designed to improve the delivery of the highest water quality 
to customers. BJWSA will be reviewing a year’s worth of data from 
routine sample sites and our operating procedures to determine what 
we need to do to meet the Best in Class standard and develop a plan 
to accomplish it.

This year, our water reclamation facilities recycled over two and a half 
billion gallons of highly treated wastewater through irrigation. Water 
from our reclamation facilities is used for irrigation at numerous golf 
courses and is sent to the Great Swamp to help re-establish the area 
as a natural wetland. Our staff is currently developing a re-use master 
plan, which aims to increase the amount of reclaimed water used for 
irrigation purposes. 

BJWSA is part of a new 
EPA initiative to improve 

the delivery of high-quality 
water to our customers
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Capital Improvements

BJWSA’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) remains an important 
instrument for responsible management and planning. While capacity 
fee revenue increased slightly in FY2011 over prior year, it still fell below 
budget. Therefore, BJWSA continues to focus on replacement and 
rehabilitation (R&R) projects rather than projects related to growth. 
BJWSA uses an R&R model which considers replacement value, age, 
and asset condition to forecast needed projects and the annual revenue 
necessary to pay for them. The required funds – derived solely from rates – 
are reserved in the Contingency and Depreciation Fund and are expended 
when R&R projects are constructed. This system of fund reservation 
reduces future cash shortages and the need to borrow money. 

The CIP is updated every three years, with both a short-term (3 year) 
and long-term (10 year) look at infrastructure needs and funding 
options. In FY2011, the BJWSA Board approved an update to the CIP, 
which had a three year value of $45 million and a ten year value of $186.4 million. 

For Fiscal Year 2011, the majority of completed projects were related to the Military Initial System 
Modifications (ISM’s) along with the completion of a Southern Beaufort County ASR well and a few 
R&R projects.

MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
Near completion or completed in fiscal year 2011

CostProject

Military Consolidation Completion $13.79 million

$ 4.1 millionGroup I ISM Projects – 
Pump Stations

$ 1.1 millionGroup I ISM Projects - Line, Valve,     
Hydrant & Meter Replacements

$3.6 millionASR 3 - Bluffton

$607,268Duke/Laurens Street Pump 
Station Rehabilitations

$2.2 millionGroup II ISM Projects started in 
FY11 – Pump Stations

$836,840Group II ISM Projects started in FY11 – 
Valve & Hydrant replacements, sewer 
relining, manhole rehabs

11INTRODUCTION
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Professional Development

From ongoing training to progressive teamwork, our employees are highly conscious of their role in 
meeting the needs of our customers and our community. In spite of the economic challenges of the 
past several years, BJWSA has maintained professional development as a high priority, sending staff 
to conferences training events. Our employees hold a total of 265 environmental licenses. Although 

the total number of employees has remained stable over the past 
years, the number of total licenses has increased in each year. The 
increase demonstrates a commitment to a highly proficient, highly 
trained workforce. 

We use a variety of resources to achieve the optimal training results, 
and our in-house training continues to expand. In fiscal year 2011, 
Georgia Southern University conducted an 8-week supervisor-
training course and the Technical College of the Lowcountry taught a 
3-week Excel computer class for BJWSA employees. 

BJWSA emphasizes safety training to protect our employees, our 
customers, and the efficiency of our operations. BJWSA held a 
comprehensive half-day workshop for the entire staff on our Safety 
Program and produced a professional video on safety procedures. 
New training courses have also been developed, which utilizes 
employees as instructors.

Now in its third year, the BJWSA In House Safety Training Program 
continues to grow employee’s knowledge base and skills. The 
program is producing safety champions and experts throughout 

the workforce. Twenty trainers are learning how to meet audience’s needs while broadening their 
presentation, facilitation, and communication skills. Students benefit by having a trainer use 
language common to our culture, train with specific equipment and procedures, and use training 
materials specific to learning styles and course objectives.

Our employees hold a total of 265 environmental licenses.

BJWSA emphasizes safety training to 
protect our employees, our customers, 
and the efficiency of our operations. 
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Customer Service

This year, BJWSA performed an in-depth efficiency 
evaluation of our Customer Service operations. In 
addition, we created an electronic Customer Service 
Manual that provides our highly trained customer 
service staff with quicker access to information 
needed to answer customer questions and concerns. 
With focused efforts on efficiency and effective 
communications, call center metrics such as wait time 
have steadily improved.

Our interactive website, newly designed last year, has proven to be 
an effective tool for customers. This year, BJWSA added an enhanced 
search engine, increasing use of the site. Website tracking has shown 
a significant increase in visits, with customers paying bills online and referring to information on 
establishing service, rates, payment options, and employment. 

BJWSA’s semi-annual NewsSplash newsletter is also an effective communication tool. Mailed to 
all of our customers, it provides helpful information about our rates, operations, water quality, and 
water conservation. Our annual Water Quality Report, which recently earned a U.S. EPA Region 
4 – Consumer Confidence Report Excellence Award, gives customers important information on the 
quality and safety of their drinking water. 

Helping Customers In Need

BJWSA’s Thad Coleman Fund continues to aid customers in low-income 
households by providing assistance with initial connection fees to our system. 
Named in honor of retired Board member Thad Coleman, the fund has helped 
seventeen people, providing over $17,000 in assistance in FY 2011. Eligibility 
is based on family size and household income. BJWSA customers contribute 
to the fund by “rounding up” to the nearest dollar on their water bills. BJWSA 
contributes $10,000 annually to the Thad Coleman fund and Beaufort County 
often provides annual contributions.

The Juanita White Fund, named after a longtime Levy community leader Juanita 
White, assists eligible customers in the Levy-Limehouse-Bellinger Hill (LLBH) 
service area. After dissolution of the LLBH Water Company, the LLBH Advisory 
Board voted to contribute $30,000 of their reserve funds to the Juanita White 
Fund. As of June 30, 2011, the fund has provided initial connections fees totaling 
$2,700 to two customers.

NewsSPLASH
A publication of Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority

Summer 2011

A Change in Rates

For the past three years, we have been able 

to avoid raising rates. However, after careful 

deliberation, the Board of Directors has concluded 

that water and sewer rates must change beginning 

July 1, 2011. 

We will continue to work hard at cost-saving 

and revenue-enhancing strategies. Even though 

BJWSA’s only source of funding for operations 

comes from rates and charges, we are committed 

to keeping rates as low as possible. 

The following rate change will be seen in August 

bills, reflecting July water usage: 

Existing Rates
Type of charge

$3.32 per 1,000 gallons

$5.60 per 1,000 gallons

$45.00

$6.00

Water usage

Sewer usage

Monthly cap on
residential sewer bills

Basic Facility Charge for

water & sewer services

New Rates

$3.46 per 1,000 gallons

$6.05 per 1,000 gallons

$48.00

No change

Monthly water used
Type of Bill

Water
3,000

7,000*

Existing Rates

$15.96

$29.24

New Rates

$16.38

$30.22

Difference

$0.42

$0.98

Water &
Sewer

3,000

7,000*

$38.76

$74.24

$40.53

$78.22

$1.77
$3.98

(with sewer rate cap)

BILLING EXAMPLES 
*The average customer’s water use is 7,000 gallons a month.

William D. Moss, Jr.

General Manager

By the time you receive this newsletter, BJWSA will have 

announced a water and sewer rate increase. BJWSA’s 

last retail rate increase occurred in July 2008. Decreased 

demand for water service due to the economic downturn 

and costs rising – such as power, fuel, and chemicals – have 

made it necessary to increase our revenues.

I am often asked by new customers, “Why are BJWSA’s rates so high compared 

to the place I came from?” Typically, I don’t know anything about their former 

water and sewer utility, so it is difficult to answer the question. There are some 

key points to consider when evaluating the cost of our service:

BJWSA is a non-profit Special Purpose District that has no taxing power. Our 

only source of revenue is from the fees and charges derived from the operation 

of our system and facilities. Many water and sewer utilities can recover some 

operation and capital costs through charges on property tax bills.

BJWSA provides service over 1400 square miles - from the tip of St. Helena 

Island to the Savannah bridge. The fuel and energy needed for operation and 

maintenance of this expansive service area are a large part of our budget – and 

these costs are rising rapidly. We also must have adequate staff to respond 

quickly to customer requests and emergencies throughout the service area.

While many other utilities have convenient access to a stream or lake for 

wastewater discharge, BJWSA’s options are highly restricted. We must 

use land disposal of treated wastewater in southern Beaufort County and 

the Lady’s Island/St. Helena Island area, which imposes costs for enhanced 

treatment, more piping, pumping, and management. Where we do discharge 

into waterways – in Port Royal Island and Hardeeville – environmental 

standards are very high and costly.

As General Manager, I am determined that we continually provide the highest 

possible quality of drinking water and excel in wastewater treatment in order 

to protect our environment. However, we do not collect more money from our 

customers than BJWSA needs to achieve this goal. We make rate increases 

reluctantly, and only with careful planning and analysis. BJWSA continues to 

encourage customers to conserve water – by using less water, you can help 

lower the increase on your bill.

Message from the General Manager
Dean Moss

INSIDE: Your Annual Water Quality Report

  A publication of Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority 3

That “pink stuff” that you may be seeing around your sink drains or in your toilets is naturally occurring airborne bacteria that has nothing to do with the quality of your water. These bacteria seek moist environments to grow.

WHAT YOU CAN DO  Always keep bathtubs and sinks wiped down and dry. Frequently clean your sinks with a cleaning solution that contains chlorine. Chlorine bleach (3 to 5 tablespoons) can be periodically stirred into the toilet tank and flushed into the bowl itself. This will not necessarily eliminate the problem, but will help control the bacteria growth. If you have a septic tank, use a non-chemical cleaner, such as borax to avoid damaging your septic system.

IMPORTANT  Follow the manufacturer’s cleaning instructions for your plumbing fixtures and countertops; chlorine cannot be used with some designer products. Use care with abrasives to avoid scratching fixtures, which will make them even more susceptible to bacteria.

What is that pink stuff on 
my bathroom fixtures?

TOP 5 WATER SAVING IRRIGATION TIPS 
FROM THE TURF LOVE PROGRAM

Inspect your irrigation system in the spring, prior to heavy 
summer use. Be sure all sprinkler heads are working 
satisfactorily, including their spray pattern. If not, obtain 
the services of someone to make any necessary repairs  
or adjustments. 

Lawns need an average 
of only one inch of water 
per week during the 
warm months. Water 
deeply, not frequently!

Water in early morning, 
not in the evening or in 
the heat of the day.

Avoid run-off by watering slowly, wetting the soil to a 
depth of 4-6”.

Leave sprinkler control setting in “OFF” position, not 
the “AUTO” position. Turn system on when no rain has 
occurred over the last few days.

1

2

3

4

5

Turf Love, a lawn care program by the Low Country 
Master Gardener Association, teaches residents how 
to produce healthy lawns while conserving water and 
reducing the use of pesticides and insecticides. BJWSA 
is a partner in the Turf Love program, which includes 
public workshops, neighborhood presentations, and 
home-site visits for lawn analysis. Qualified Master 
Gardeners make home visits and obtain soil samplings, 
which are analyzed at Clemson University. 

For more information, contact Bill Leonard, Turf Love 
Coordinator, 843-540-3600 or hortusdoc@gmail.com

“Turf Love” means saving water
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Community Involvement

Our Communications Team is dedicated to educating the community on our operations and 
our commitment to the Lowcountry. This year, BJWSA conducted tours at several facilities for a 

diverse range of groups, including the Lowcountry Council of Governments, the 
Technical College of the Lowcountry, Osher Lifelong Learning Institute, Vocational 
Rehabilitation of Beaufort, several elementary and middle schools and private civic 
groups.  

BJWSA is also committed to teaching the community about the importance of 
water efficiency and environmental stewardship. We not only respond to requests 
for information, but also seek opportunities to speak to groups and organizations. 
This year, our staff made several presentations to civic groups and homeowner’s 
associations, such as Sun City, about our Integrated Water Resources Management 
Plan and other water related topics. 

BJWSA encourages water conservation through our rain barrel program and our 
ongoing partnership with Clemson University’s Extension Service. Continued 
cooperative agreements with the Extension Service allow us to reach a diverse and 

vast audience throughout our service areas. Their TurfLove program – a 
project designed for master gardeners and landscape enthusiasts – enables 
us to spread our message of efficient and responsible irrigation to an 
influential audience. 

Once again, BJWSA sponsored an annual poster contest for area elementary 
students during National Drinking Water Week to encourage water 
conservation and improve water knowledge. This year, over 500 children 
entered the popular contest, creating posters for the theme Water, Celebrate 
the Essential. Customers also were invited to visit our administrative building 
for a customer appreciation event that included refreshments, handouts, and 
the chance to win a free rain barrel.

BJWSA employees participated in multiple Earth Day events, gave out free 
water drinks at the Beaufort Water Festival, sponsored a tree at the annual Festival of Trees, and 
volunteered the United Way’s annual Day of Caring.



MESSAGE FROM 
MANAGEMENT
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MESSAGE FROM MANAGEMENT
The management and staff of Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer Authority (“the Authority”) are pleased to present the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This is the eighth report issued as 
a CAFR. In keeping with the Authority’s objective to provide greater information to the public in a more efficient manner, 
the CAFR is also available online at www.bjwsa.org.

Management is responsible, in all material respects, both for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and 
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures. The data is reported in a manner designed to fairly present the 
financial position and the results of operations of the Authority. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the Authority’s financial and operational activities are included.

Profile of the Government
The Authority was created under provisions of Act No. 784 – enacted during the 1954 Session of the General Assembly 
of the State of South Carolina – as a public, nonprofit corporation to acquire and distribute supplies of fresh water for 
industrial and domestic purposes within its service area. During its 1969 Session, the General Assembly enacted Act No. 
598, which enlarged the functions and powers of the Authority to include the construction of facilities that provide for 
the collection, treatment, and disposal of wastewater in thickly populated areas of Beaufort County. In 1971, the General 
Assembly created the Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority to provide an entity capable of providing water and 
wastewater service in Jasper County for areas not served by municipal governments. In 1983, the Authority and the Jasper 
County Water and Sewer Authority were consolidated into the entity now called the Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer 
Authority. The Authority was governed by a Board that consisted of nine members appointed by the Governor of South 
Carolina, upon recommendation of the legislative delegations for Beaufort County and Jasper County. In May 2009, the 
South Carolina Legislature passed Act S793, which consolidated all past enabling legislation amendments relating to 
the powers, service area and membership of the Authority and adjusted its powers and duties to recognize the changed 
environment of the 21st century. As part of the Act, the Board membership was expanded from nine to eleven members. 
The two additional members are recommended to the Governor by the Jasper County Delegation. The Authority provides 
direct services to the citizens in the incorporated areas of the City of Beaufort, the Town of Bluffton, the City of Hardeeville, 
the Town of Port Royal, as well as to areas of unincorporated Beaufort and Jasper counties. Additionally, the Authority 
indirectly serves thousands of additional citizens in the Beaufort and Hilton Head Island areas through wholesale services 
provided to other water and sewer utilities. The Authority’s customer base as of June 30, 2011 was 46,781 retail water 

November 1, 2011
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accounts and the following wholesale water customers: Military installations – Naval Hospital, Parris Island Recruit Depot, 
Marine Corps Air Station Beaufort, Laurel Bay Housing Facility; Utilities – Hilton Head Island PSD, Fripp Island PSD, Harbor 
Island Utilities, Callawassie/CUC, Inc., Water Oak Utility, and Warsaw Eustis Oaks Water Company. These wholesale 
customers resell and/or redistribute the Authority’s water to their residents, resulting in total customers directly and 
indirectly serviced by the Authority in excess of 136,000. The Authority’s headquarters are located on Highway 170, 
approximately thirteen miles south of the City of Beaufort. 

The Authority provides reliable high quality supplies of potable water used for drinking, irrigation, fire protection, and 
other purposes. The Chelsea Water Treatment Plant (located on Highway 170 at the Authority’s headquarters) and the 
Purrysburg Water Treatment Plant (located in Jasper County) are the principal treatment facilities, both utilizing the 
Savannah River as their source. Ground water systems supplement the main system and also provide water to Point South 
and Palm Key in Jasper County.

The wastewater system serves approximately 29,925 retail and 3 wholesale customers. The wastewater collection 
systems consist of gravity pipelines, lift stations and force mains conveying wastewater to nine (9) treatment plants. 
The three largest wastewater treatment plants are Cherry Point Water Reclamation Facility, Port Royal Island Water 
Reclamation Facility, and the Hardeeville Wastewater Treatment Plant, with respective capacities of 7.5, 7.5, and 1.01 MGD 
(millions of gallons per day). The additional six plants’ combined capacity is approximately 2.84 MGD. Other wastewater 
services include industrial pretreatment programs, water reclamation for irrigation, and sludge and septage disposal.

Financial Information
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (found in the financial section of this report) serves as an introduction to the 
financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the supplementary information and this portion of the 
management transmittal letter.

Accounting System and Budgetary Control 

The Authority’s financial accounting system is based on the full accrual basis in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP). BJWSA has no taxing power. All activities of the Authority 
are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund, which is utilized when the intent of the governing body is 
that the cost of providing goods or services to the general public be financed primarily through user charges. Operational 
and maintenance costs, including certain equipment purchases, are funded from customer fees and charges. The 
acquisition and construction of capital assets are funded by capital (cash and systems) contributions from customers, 
including other utilities and developers, Federal and State grants and loans, and customer revenues. 

The Authority’s Board approves the annual budget for recommended rates, expenses, and capital outlay. The Authority 
controls current expenses at both the functional and operating division levels by continuously monitoring costs compared 
to budget and by reporting variances and other significant financial data monthly to the Finance Committee. Managers 
are responsible for budgetary items that are controllable at their respective functional levels. This dual monitoring of 
expenses by both management and the Finance Committee of the Board serves to strengthen overall budgetary and 
management controls.  

Internal Accounting Controls 

The financial management policies of the Authority provide the framework and direction for financial reporting, planning, 
and decision making by management and the Board. Additionally, they are designed to ensure the financial integrity of the 
Authority and a service delivery system that addresses the needs of users of financial information, including the reliability 
of such data. Policies are documented and periodically reviewed to reflect changes in Board policy, legal and professional 
requirements, and changes in accepted industry practices. 
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Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded from unauthorized 
use or disposition, and that records used for preparing financial reports and maintaining asset accountability are reliable. A 
system of internal controls is established and monitored by management after weighing the cost of such controls against 
the benefits derived. Due to the inherent limitations of the effectiveness of any system of internal accounting control, 
management cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of internal accounting control will be met. However, 
as a part of the Authority’s ongoing effort to employ comprehensive and cost-effective internal accounting controls, the 
Controller reviews controls and procedures on a continuing basis and immediately reports any concerns to the Chief 
Financial Officer for resolution. As part of this initiative, the Controller oversees the documentation and periodic review 
of financial standard operating procedures (SOPs) to ensure that internal audit functions and professional skepticism are 
incorporated as part of the analytical and reporting function. Management of the Authority is further charged, through 
personnel policies, with providing the leadership that promotes ethical behavior within the control environment.

The Finance Committee of the Board of Directors serves as the Audit Committee of the Authority. It is composed of four 
members of the Board who are not employees and who provide a broad overview of management’s financial reporting and 
control functions. Generally, this Committee meets with management on a monthly basis to review the financial status of 
the Authority. Additionally, the Committee meets with management and the independent external auditors to ensure that 
both parties are fulfilling their obligations with regard to auditing, controls, and other financial reporting factors.

Rates and Charges 

In order to provide adequate service to its customers, the Authority must receive sufficient total revenue to cover 
operation and maintenance expenses, planned cash capital outlays, debt payments, and required cash reserves. While the 
Authority prepares long-range rate projections based upon revenue sufficiency, these projections are reviewed annually 
through the budgetary and rate-making process of the Authority. 

Management recommends rates based upon a cost of service analysis, which incorporates the principle of revenue 
sufficiency and equity among customer classes. Rate recommendations and the supporting budgets are presented 
through the Finance Committee to the Board for approval annually. An analysis is presented with the budget and rate 
recommendation to ensure that utility revenues are sufficient to recover total cash needs for a three-year projection 
period. The general revenue policies which guide the Authority are outlined as follows:

• Sufficient total revenue to cover operation and maintenance expenses, planned cash capital outlays, debt payments, 
and required cash reserves;

• Rates based upon a cost of service analysis, which incorporates the principle of revenue sufficiency and equity among 
customer classes;

• Effective collections to assure that obligations to BJWSA are paid in a timely and appropriate manner to maximize 
resources and efficiency; and

• Conservative revenue and customer growth projections for consistent budgeting and adequate cash planning.

Over the years, the Authority has been able to minimize rate increases because of its aggressive capital contribution fee 
structure, ongoing operational improvements, consistent control of expenses, and careful financial planning. Until 2002, 
the Authority’s retail rates had not changed in fourteen (14) years. From 2002–2006, the Authority implemented a series 
of planned rate changes designed to gradually increase revenue and to encourage water conservation. After no increases 
to water and sewer rates in fiscal years 2007 and 2008, the Board approved on June 26, 2008 a wholesale and retail 
water and wastewater rate increase effective July 1, 2008. These rates remained in place for fiscal years 2009–2011. On 
June 23, 2011, the Board approved a wholesale and retail water and wastewater rate increase effective July 1, 2011. The 
Board agreed that a rate increase was necessary to ensure the Authority’s strong financial condition, with adequate  
cash and debt service coverage. The Authority believes that the customer rate increases are supported by the cost of 
services provided. 
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OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSE, EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
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The current economic environment has presented special challenges to fiscal stability and maintenance of service levels. 
The Authority has addressed many of these challenges and continues to assess their impact on maintaining a fiscally 
sound organization while delivering the level of service demanded by its customers. Total water customer accounts 
increased approximately 1.1% and wastewater customers increased 2.4% from 2010 to 2011. At year-end, the Authority 
served 46,785 water customers, an increase over prior year of 506 customers with approximately 64% of the customers 
also receiving wastewater services. 

The following two charts show the comparability between customer growth and kgal (thousand gallons) billings for water 
and wastewater, respectively. The “Water Sales and Customer History” reflects higher per customer water consumption 
during the drought years of 2000 through 2002 when demand for irrigation increased dramatically. When the drought 
ended in 2003, customer growth outpaced water sales. For the Fiscal Year 2011, dry weather and increased demand 
resulted in a significant increase in water sales compared to prior year while customer growth showed only a slight 
increase as a result of the housing and development markets continuing to feel the impact of the economy. Retail and 
wholesale water usage increased 5.4% and 16.5% respectively which resulted in higher per customer water consumption.

Financial Condition

Management believes the Authority’s financial condition remains strong. Despite the economic climate over the past few 
years, stringent financial planning and conservative budgeting have ensured that the Authority remains fiscally sound. 
Operating revenues, operating expenses (excluding depreciation), and debt service payments for the last five fiscal years 
are shown in the following graph:

WATER SALES & CUSTOMER HISTORY

kg
al

s

cu
st

om
er

s10,000,000

8,000,000

6,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

50,000

2010 20112002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Kgal Sales Customers



20 BJWSA COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2011

WASTEWATER SALES & CUSTOMER HISTORY
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Cash Management

It is the policy of the Authority to maintain an effective program of cash and investment management that complies  
with prevailing state and federal regulations, and adheres to guidelines and standards promulgated by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and the 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA). Investments of the Authority must comply with South Carolina 
Code, Section 6-5-10.

The Authority’s cash management program seeks to achieve three objectives with regard to investments: safety of 
principal, adequate liquidity to meet daily cash needs and a reasonable yield commensurate with the preservation of 
principal and liquidity. Cash balances and investment rates are reported to the Finance Committee monthly. Details of 
deposits and investments at year-end may be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Risk Management

In addition to maintaining sufficient resources to address financial risk through the Contingency and Depreciation 
Fund, the Authority purchases insurance for general and automobile liability and participates with the State Accident 
Fund in providing workers’ compensation coverage to limit exposure to risk. Consultants or independent carriers 
generally provide rates based upon actuarial studies of risk and the Authority performs a ‘cost versus benefit’ analysis 
to determine appropriate coverage. A detail of coverage may be found in the Statistical Section of the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. 

Even the most conscientious efforts cannot eliminate all risk, because risk is inherent in most productive activities. 
Proactive steps can, however, help the Authority avoid or reduce the impact of risk on operations. The Authority has 
implemented policies regarding insurance coverage on various assets, ensuring that high-risk assets are adequately 
insured and that those assets which are less risk adverse and less costly to replace are removed from the insurable 
assets register. The insurance register is continually updated to comply with these policies.

Independent Audit

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by the Authority’s independent auditors, Cherry, Bekaert, and 
Holland, L.L.P., and their report on the financial statements resulting from their audit is included in the financial section 
of this report.of this report.
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Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 

The Government Finance Officer Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer Authority for its comprehensive 
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This was the seventh consecutive year that the Authority 
has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an 
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally 
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Management believes that the current comprehensive 
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and is submitting it to 
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Final Comments

Management has developed policies and procedures that direct personnel 
actions toward the Board’s adopted mission of providing affordable, 
efficient, and reliable water and wastewater services. Part of the strategy to 
accomplish this mission is to pursue consolidating public and private utilities 
into the Authority’s system where consolidation will yield rate stability and 
improved service for customers. In keeping with this strategy, on September 
1, 2008 the Authority purchased and began operating and maintaining the 
water and wastewater utilities on Parris Island, the Marine Corps Air Station, 
Laurel Bay Housing, and the Naval Hospital. During fiscal year 2011, the 
Authority completed several upgrades to the military systems and improved 
service reliability. These military system upgrades will continue through 
Fiscal Year 2013. In September 2010 the Parris Island and Marine Corps Air 
Station wastewater plants were demolished and flows were consolidated to 
the Authority’s Port Royal Island Water Reclamation Facility. 

We are thankful to all the employees of the Authority for their hard work and 
dedication. Additionally, we would like to recognize the Authority’s General 
Manager and Board of Directors for their leadership, support, and continued 
commitment to excellence

Dottie Hofmann, Chief Financial Officer 

Sarah Linkimer, Controller
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Report of Independent Auditors

Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer Authority Governing Board 
Beaufort, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority (the “Authority”) as of and 
for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash 
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of The Authority’s management. Our responsibility 
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of 
Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority, as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the 
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 20, 2011, on our consideration 
of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis 
on pages 25 through 35 and the schedule of funding progress for the postemployment healthcare plan on page 62 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Authority’s 
basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary information and statistical section are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them.

Augusta, Georgia 
October 20,2011
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Overview

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial statements of the Beaufort-
Jasper Water and Sewer Authority (the Authority) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. The MD&A represents 
management’s examination and analysis of the Authority’s financial condition and performance and should be read in conjunction 
with the financial information of the transmittal letter in the introductory section, the financial statements as presented in the financial 
section of this report, and the supplementary financial data. The financial statements include: balance sheets; statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net assets; statements of cash flows; and notes to the financial statements.

The balance sheets present the financial position of the Authority as of a specific date. This statement provides information about the 
nature and amount of resources (assets) and obligations (liabilities), with the difference reported as net assets. Increases and decreases 
in net assets may serve as an indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating. 

The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets present the results of the business activities and information about 
how the net assets changed during the course of the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information on 
the Authority’s cost recovery. Rate setting policies use different methods of cost recovery not fully addressed by generally accepted 
accounting principles. These policies seek to improve equity among customer classes and to ensure that capital costs are allocated on 
the basis of long-term capacity needs, ensuring that growth pays for growth. 

The statements of cash flows present the cash activities of the Authority segregated in the following three major categories: operating, 
investing, and capital and related financing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and cash disbursement information without 
consideration of the earnings event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets. 

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information essential to fully understand the data 
provided in the statements. Supplementary information contains additional financial data, such as budgetary comparisons, expenses 
by classification, and debt service coverage. Although not a required part of the financial statements, this data enhances information 
provided to users

Financial Highlights
• Financial Position continues to be strong, with adequate cash and debt service coverage. Of the $46.1 million unrestricted net assets, 

$15.0 million is Board-designated for capital funding and $31.1 million is available to provide for current operations. Unrestricted net 
assets increased approximately $16.4 million, or 55%, above prior year (as compared to a decrease of approximately $1.9 million, or 
6%, from 2009 to 2010). The increase in net assets is due to the significant increase in both operating and non-operating revenue 
over prior year. 

• Debt service coverage (excluding capacity fees) decreased from 173% to 162% for fiscal year 2011, which continues to remain above 
the 125% requirement established by the Board. This decrease in debt service coverage (excluding capacity fees) is largely the result 
of an increase in annual debt payments. Debt service coverage (including capacity fees) decreased from 179% in prior year to 172%, 
exceeding the 110% required by the bond covenants. 

MANAGEMENT’S 
DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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• Total operating revenues for fiscal year 2011 were $42.9 million, an increase of approximately 5.9%, or $2.4 million, over the prior 
year due to the impact of dry weather. Residential water consumption increased by 6.6% or 214,000 kgals (thousands of gallons) 
over prior year and average residential customer monthly water consumption in kgals for the year increased from 6.41 to 6.77. While 
customer conservation continues to be an initiative, the lack of rainfall in the spring and summer months resulted in a dramatic 
increase in both retail water and irrigation revenues. The Authority went above its conservative projection of 300 water customers 
for fiscal year 2011 reporting 506 new water customers at year end (compared to 815 new water customers in 2010).

Fiscal year 2010 total operating revenues were $40.5 million, a decrease of approximately 0.5%, or $197 thousand, over fiscal 
year 2009 due to the impact of the weather and economy. Residential water consumption decreased by 1% or 18,000 kgals over 
fiscal year 2009 and average residential customer monthly water consumption in kgals for the year decreased from 6.55 to 6.41. 
Customer conservation continued where the unstable economy coupled with more rainfall than normal caused a decline in retail 
water and irrigation revenues. The Authority went above its conservative projection of 300 water customers for fiscal year 2010 
reporting 815 new water customers at year end (compared to 153 new water customers in 2009).

• Total operating expenses for fiscal year 2011 were approximately $45.4 million, an increase of 3.1%, or $1.3 million, over the prior 
year. Depreciation expense accounted for $22.6 million of total operating expense and was an increase of approximately $500 
thousand over prior year depreciation. Excluding depreciation, total operating expenses were $22.8 million, an increase of 3.9%, or 
$853 thousand, over the prior year. Excluding depreciation, water operating expenses increased 6.4%, or $763 thousand, over the 
prior year, and wastewater operating expenses increased 0.9%, or $90 thousand, over the prior year. These increases are attributed 
to rising costs in fuel, chemicals, and power combined with the increase in production. 

Fiscal year 2010 total operating expenses were $44 million, a decrease of 1.6%, or $726 thousand, over fiscal year 2009. Depreciation 
expense accounted for $22.1 million of total operating expense and was an increase of approximately $1 million over fiscal year 2009 
depreciation. Excluding depreciation, total operating expenses for fiscal year 2010 were $21.9 million, a decrease of 7.1%, or $1.7 
million, over fiscal year 2009. Excluding depreciation, water operating expenses decreased 8.7%, or $1.14 million and wastewater 
operating expenses decreased 5.2%, or $547 thousand, compared to fiscal year 2009. These decreases are due to a combined effort 
by management and employees to cut discretionary spending and control costs in response to the economic slowdown.

• Operating loss was ($2.43 million) for 2011 compared to ($3.49 million) operating loss for 2010, an increase in operating margin 
of approximately $1.1 million. This increase resulted primarily from the increase in retail water revenue of $1.9 million over prior 
year. For fiscal year 2011, $1.88 was generated from operating revenues for every $1.00 expensed (excluding depreciation and non-
operating expenses), an increase of $0.03 or 2% from prior year’s operating ratio of $1.85.

• Net cash provided by operating activities represented 48.0% and 45.6% of operating revenues for fiscal years ended 2011 and 
2010, respectively. The Authority generated $20.6 million from operations to support capital and financing activities, an increase of 
$2.13 million or 12% over prior year. 

• Capacity fees and developer contributions of systems were $1.2 million and $2.7 million, respectively, for fiscal year 2011. Capacity 
fees increased $607 thousand, or 96.5%, over the prior year. New development continued to be slow in both the Residential and 
Commercial markets. In the current economic environment, developers are approaching new residential development cautiously 
and commercial businesses are doing minimal expansion. While the Authority has experienced a slight increase in the demand 
for capacity over the past year, it still fell below projections. Developer contributions, which were $6.5 million in 2010, decreased 
approximately 59% or $3.8 million. The Authority continues to ensure that current customers do not bear the cost of growth by 
internally designating capacity fees to expand or upgrade the system. With the dramatic decrease in capacity fees over the past four 
years, numerous capital projects relating to growth have been deferred until future years or until the demand for capacity increases.
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2011 2010 2009 Dollars % Dollars %

Capital assets:
Producing assets 401,574,366$ 393,157,353 391,010,877$ $ 8,417,013 2.1% $ 2,146,476 0.5%
Construction in progress 6,926,686 21,026,680 13,926,148 (14,099,994) -67.1% 7,100,532 51.0%

Current assets (including designated & restricted) 39,837,829        36,462,239 41,160,468 3,375,590 9.3% (4,698,229) -11.4%
Other noncurrent assets 27,226,978 33,718,346 34,803,190 (6,491,368) -19.3% (1,084,844) -3.1%

Total assets

Current liabilities 15,214,449$ 21,084,704 14,319,914 (5,870,255) -27.8%
Long term liabilities 154,578,113 174,360,455 177,139,350 (19,782,342) -11.3% (2,778,895) -1.6%

Total liabilities 195,445,159 191,459,264169,792,562      (25,652,597) -13.1% 3,985,895

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related liabilities 257,568,457 254,639,490258,046,260 477,803 0.2% 2,928,967 1.2%
Restricted for capital activity and debt service 1,606,380 1,631,269 3,207,821 (24,889) -1.5% (1,576,552) -49.1%
Unrestricted 46,120,657 29,719,733 31,594,108 16,400,924 55.2% (1,874,375) -5.9%

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

288,919,459 289,441,419305,773,297 16,853,838 5.8% (521,960) 0.2%

484,364,618 480,900,683$ $$ $475,565,859$  (8,798,759) -1.8% 3,463,935 0.7%

June 30,

Increase (decrease)

2010 to 2011 2009 to 2010

Increase (decrease)

484,364,618 480,900,683475,565,859$

$

$ $ $ 6,764,790 47.2%$

$ $ $ $(8,798,759) -1.8% 3,463,935 0.7%

21%

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

Financial Position
The following comparative condensed balance sheets provide an analysis of the change in financial position from the previous 
fiscal years:

Total net assets as of June 30, 2011 were approximately $306 million, representing an increase of 5.8% from the prior year. Total net assets 
increased by approximately $16.9 million over fiscal year 2010, primarily as a result of the reduction in long term liabilities by $19.8 million. 
This decrease in liabilities can be attributed to the recognition of Military construction revenue as the Military Initial System Modifications 
(ISM’s) were completed during the year thus releasing the corresponding unearned revenue. The reduction of current liabilities is due to 
the repayment of the Bank of America bond anticipation note of $5 million. The increase in current assets relates primarily to the Military’s 
second payment of the Military Consolidation Project of $7.3 million due upon completion of the consolidation construction. The Department 
of the Navy receivable was the corresponding offset to the payment resulting in the reduction of other noncurrent assets. In 2010, net 
assets decreased by $522 thousand or 0.2% from prior year. This decrease was due to the decline in water and sewer cash balances as 
construction continued on the Military ISM projects but repayment of these ISM projects is being spread over 20 years. Of the $46.1 million 
unrestricted net assets, $15.0 million is Board-designated for capital funding and $31.1 million is available to provide for current operations. 

Producing assets increased a net $8.4 million (compared to $2.1 million in 2010), which reflects additions of $2.7 million from developer 
noncash contributions; $26 million capitalized construction in progress (CIP) projects and $2.3 million in capital purchases, as well as 
a decrease of ($22.6 million) from depreciation. Major contributed capital additions (over $400 thousand) represent 61% of the total 
and include: Whale Branch High School (approximately $691 thousand); Del Webb (approximately $531 thousand); and Buck Island & 
Simmonsville Roads (approximately $410 thousand). These developments included pump stations in addition to water and wastewater 
lines. The $2.3 million operating capital purchases consisted of approximately $851 thousand in capitalized engineering salaries, 
approximately $784 thousand in capitalized meters and transponders, and approximately $683 thousand in equipment purchases 
and vehicles. The Authority disposed of $309 thousand in assets (compared to $550 thousand in 2010). Disposals in fiscal year 2011 
consisted primarily of vehicles.

Construction in progress decreased a net of approximately $14.1 million over prior year (compared to a net increase of $7.1 million in 2010) 
as a result of the completion of the Military consolidation and ISM projects during the year, which accounted for $19 million of the decrease. 
The Authority expended $12.2 million on capital assets related to construction projects during fiscal year 2011, with approximately $26 
million completed and moved to producing assets. Major projects (over $1 million) completed during fiscal year 2011 include the Military 
Consolidation Project (approximately $13.8 million); Military Group I ISM pump station projects (approximately $4.1 million); Aquifer 
Storage and Recovery System (ASR3) (approximately $3.6 million); Military Group I ISM line, valve, hydrant and meter replacements 
(approximately $1.1 million); and SC DOT and Beaufort County road widening/line relocations project (approximately $1.1 million).
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NET EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE
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Of the $6.9 million in construction in progress at the end of fiscal year 2011, $3 million is related to the Military phase II ISM projects, 
$800 thousand to wastewater pump station and control panel rehabs, and $700 thousand to Bluffton Parkway pipeline relocations. 
Additional information on capital assets may be found in the footnotes to the financial statements.

Debt and Debt Service Coverage
Long-term liabilities decreased approximately $19.8 million net over the prior fiscal year due to a decrease in Military unearned revenue 
of $18.6 million. Long term debt decreased by $1.3 million due to principal payments. This reduction was offset by draws on the Series 
2009A (ASR3) and Series 2010A (Military Consolidation Project) State Revolving Fund Loans during the fiscal year. In 2010, liabilities 
decreased approximately $2.8 million over 2009 due to a decrease in unearned revenue of $3.1 million. 

Equity to Long-Term Debt increased from 2.01 for 2010 to 2.15 for 2011. This translates to each $1 of long-term debt being represented 
by $2.15 in equity, which indicates that the Authority has increased equity at a rate greater than debt during the current fiscal year. The 
Authority believes that the ratio is appropriate for its current operations, and it clearly demonstrates the strength of its equity. 

In the Bond Resolutions the Authority covenants and agrees that it will, at all times, prescribe, maintain, and thereafter collect rates and 
charges for the services and facilities furnished by the Authority, together with other income, that will yield annual Net Earnings in the 
fiscal year equal to at least one hundred ten percent (110%) of the sum of the annual debt service payments for all bonds outstanding. 
“Net Earnings” is defined by the Bond Resolution to mean, for the period in question, the net operating income of the System (i.e., the 
Authority) determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, adding back depreciation, and including interest 
income not restricted to bond construction and cash capital contributions not received by government grants. 

The rate covenant in the Bond Resolution obligates the Authority to review rates not less than once a year and to revise such rates and 
charges as necessary to meet the coverage test. The Authority further covenants in the Bond Resolution that it will maintain rates and 
charges that are at all times sufficient to provide for the payment of the bonds; to maintain the debt service funds, debt service reserve 
funds, and any other related funding instruments related to the debt of the System; to provide for the payment of administrative and 
operational expenses of the System preserving the System in good repair and working order; and to build and maintain a reserve for 
depreciation of the System.

Although the Bond Resolutions allow the use of capacity fee revenue (i.e., cash capital contributions) in the calculation of debt service 
coverage, the Authority has adopted a more stringent internal policy of maintaining one hundred and twenty-five percent (125%) debt 
service coverage without consideration of capacity fee revenue. Revenue bond debt service coverage for 2011 and 2010 was 172% and 
179%, respectively, including cash capital contributions, and 162% and 173%, without the contributions. The following table presents the 
required net earnings as defined by the bond covenants; actual net earnings, including capital contributions, available for debt service; 
and total annual debt service. Additional information regarding Long-Term Debt can be found in Note 7 of the Financial Statements.
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Revenues
Revenues from operations fall into three general categories: water service, wastewater service and ancillary charges. Ancillary charges 
include tap fees, account set up and penalty fees, engineering and inspection services, and charges for other miscellaneous services. 
The Authority has two classes of water and wastewater customers: wholesale and retail, with retail customers further subdivided into 
residential, commercial and military. 

The following Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, shows the results of operations for the current 
and the prior two fiscal years:

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Three year comparison – year ended June 30,
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Total operating revenues were $42.9 million, an increase of 5.9%, or $2.4 million, over the prior year due primarily to retail water 
revenues. As discussed in the financial highlights section, customer usage increased significantly due to the impact of the dry weather. 
From fiscal year 2010 to 2011, water customers increased 506, or 1.1% (compared to an increase of 815 or 1.8% from 2009 to 2010), 
and wastewater customers increased 714, or 2.4% (compared to an increase of 731 or 2.6% from 2009 to 2010). Retail residential and 
commercial water consumption figures, as measured by billings, increased approximately 234,000 kgals (thousands of gallons), or 
5.4% from prior year. Wastewater consumption increased approximately 263,000 kgals or 9.1% from prior year. 

The following chart shows the change in rates for an average customer (defined as 7 thousand gallons per month residential water 
usage) from fiscal year 2008 to fiscal year 2011, utilizing the fiscal year 2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011 rates as adopted.

The average realized rate from retail water sales was $3.92 per thousand gallons in 2010 and $4.11 in 2011, an increase of 4.8%. The 
average realized rate from retail wastewater sales was $4.76 per thousand gallons in 2010 and $4.55 in 2011, a decrease of 4.4%.

MONTHLY WATER & WASTEWATER BILL FOR 7KGAL RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER
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Expenses
The Authority operates and maintains a potable water treatment and delivery system and a wastewater collection, treatment, and 
effluent disposal system. The bulk of the water production occurs at the two surface water treatment plants. Wells are also used for 
some remote service areas and for peak management in the main system. The wastewater system includes nine wastewater treatment 
plants and associated transmission and disposal facilities. 

Total operating expenses were approximately $45.4 million, an increase of 3.1%, or $1.3 million over the prior year. Depreciation 
expense accounted for $22.6 million of total operating expense and was an increase of approximately $500 thousand over prior year. 
Excluding depreciation, total operating expenses were $22.8 million, an increase of 3.9%, or $853 thousand, over the prior year. 

Excluding depreciation, water operating expenses increased 6.4%, or $763 thousand, over the prior year. The significant increases from 
the prior year primarily related to the following expenses:

• Power (increased $281 thousand or 20%);

• Repairs and maintenance, including storage tanks (increased $176 thousand or 15%);

• Chemicals (increased $139 thousand or 26%);

• Other increases over the prior year include salaries and wages, group health insurance, franchise fees, fuel, training, and travel. 
Decreases over prior year included professional fees, bank fees, advertising and promotional expenses.

Excluding depreciation, wastewater operating expenses increased 0.9%, or $90 thousand, over the prior year. The significant increases 
from the prior year primarily related to the following expenses:

• Fuel cost (increased $34 thousand or 13%);

• Group health insurance (increased $31 thousand or 8%);

• Other increases over the prior year include lab contracts, disposal fees, telephone, franchise fees, travel and training costs. Decreases 
over prior year include power, professional fees, bank fees, and advertising and promotional expenses.

As noted in the following analytical data, water expense per kgal (unit cost) excluding depreciation decreased 2.0% from fiscal year 
2010 due to the significant increase in consumption in this fiscal year. Wastewater expense per kgal (unit cost) excluding depreciation 
decreased 7.5% from prior year due to the increase in volume of retail residential and commercial wastewater treated in fiscal year 2011. 

Operating Margin
While operating expenses, excluding depreciation, increased $853 thousand compared to fiscal year 2010, total operating revenue of 
the Authority increased $2.4 million, increasing the operating margin by $1.55 million before depreciation. Actual 2011 operating loss 
was $2.43 million compared to an operating loss of $3.49 million in 2010, an increase in operating margin of approximately 
$1.06 million. 

For fiscal year 2011, $1.88 was generated from operating revenues for every $1.00 expensed (excluding depreciation and non-operating 
expenses), which increased by $0.03 or 2% compared to prior year. For comparative purposes, the operating ratios (operating revenues 
divided by operating expenses less depreciation) were 1.88, 1.85, 1.72, and 1.72, for 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. 
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Selected Data for Analysis 
The following chart demonstrates and compares to prior year some of the key statistical data for the Authority:
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Cash Flow Activity
Cash was generated throughout the year from operating and non-operating activities to provide sufficient resources to cover operations 
and debt service. At year end, the unrestricted cash balances were above $8.88 million, which represents three months coverage for 
both operating expenses and debt service. At the end of the fiscal year unrestricted cash and cash equivalents were $10.89 million, as 
compared to $10.59 million prior year. 

The following table shows the Authority’s ability to generate net operating cash. Net cash provided by operating activities is shown both 
in total dollars and as a percentage of operating revenues.

The Authority’s ability to generate $20.6 million from operations to support capital and financing activities, which surpassed the $18.5 
million for the prior fiscal year, combined with the increase in operating revenue, the percentage of net cash provided as compared to 
revenues increased in the current fiscal year. In addition to the $20.6 million generated from operating activities, the Authority generated 
$62 thousand from investing activities as compared to $57 thousand prior year. This slight increase is a direct result of the increase 
in account balances in the designated cash accounts. Over the past several years the Authority has felt the impact of the decline in 
institutional interest rates and has seen a significant reduction in the cash provided by investing activities. 

Cash payments for construction and acquisition of capital assets decreased from $24.7 million in 2010 to $15.5 million in 2011. The $15.5 
million in capital expenditures were funded by the issuance of long term debt and capital funding from capacity fees and depreciation 
(renewal and replacement) funds. Total cash payments for debt service, which were anticipated in the fiscal year budget, were 
approximately $19.0 million, compared to $54.8 million in prior year. The decrease in cash debt payments in 2011 fiscal year was due to 
prior year refunding of the Series 2010B Revenue Bonds. Of the $20.6 million generated from operating and investing activities, a net of 
$16.3 million was expended on financing activities, leaving an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $4.3 million for 2011, as compared 
to a decrease of $5.4 million for 2010. 

  IN THOUSANDS

 2011 2010  VARIANCE

Total operating revenues  $42,927  $40,517  $2,410

Net cash provided by operations  $20,598  $18,468  $2,130

Net operation cash as a % of operating revenue  48.0%  45.6%
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CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (IN THOUSANDS)

$30,000

$20,000

$10,000

Capacity Fees Contributed Capital Grants

2008

$24,330

$8,449

$190

$13,801

$2,361 $248

2009

$6,505
$629

2010

$0
$2,669$1,236

2011

$420

The authority received $419,924 in grants as a sub-recipient of a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) for the Dale area. 
There were no grants received by the Authority in fiscal year 2010. 

Capacity Fees and Grants
The Authority collects water and wastewater capacity fees to ensure that current customers do not bear the entire burden of growth. 
These fees are paid by all new customers and represent, on a residential equivalent unit basis, the cost of the water and/or wastewater 
capacity represented by the new account.

On November 16, 2006, the Board adopted amended capacity fees to become effective June 1, 2007, as follows:

• Water Capacity   $1,200/Residential Equivalent Unit ($3.00/gpd x 400 gallons)

• Wastewater Capacity $2,760/Residential Equivalent Unit ($9.20/gpd x 300 gallons)

Prior to this fee increase, the cost per residential equivalent unit (REU) of water and wastewater was $800 and $2,700, respectively. 

Capacity fee revenues increased 96% or $607 thousand for 2011, as compared to 2010. As previously mentioned, the downturn in the 
development market and the economic crisis caused a severe decrease in capacity fee revenue over the past several years. While 2011 
experienced a slight increase in capacity fees compared to 2010, it still fell below projections. In response to the lack of development, 
which in turn decreased demand for capacity, the Authority has focused its Fiscal Years 2011-2014 Capital Improvements Plan on 
renewal and replacement projects rather than expansion/growth projects. The Authority restricts the use of capacity fee revenue to 
capital investment in growth related projects and these fees are reported in the Statement of Cash Flows as a capital financing source. 

Commercial and residential real estate developers also construct and then convey to the Authority water and wastewater systems that 
serve their developments. GASB 33 and 34 define these fees as non-operating revenues and require reporting the amounts through the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets. Developers contributed utility systems valued at $2.7 million during fiscal 
year 2011. The developments at Whale Branch High School of $691 thousand, Del Webb of $531, and Buck Island & Simmonsville Roads 
of $410 thousand accounted for 61% of system contributions. Developers convey primarily residential systems to the Authority upon 
completion in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the Authority. These contributions are not budgeted as they are 
generally non-cash, of limited relevance to rate setting, and the timing is not subject to Authority control.

The following chart depicts capital contribution activity for the last four fiscal years:
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Capital Assets
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Authority received approximately $2.7 million in contributed capital, spent approximately $12.2 
million on the capital improvement program and spent $2.3 million on operating capital (meters, equipment and vehicles). Disposals 
of fully depreciated assets were recorded in the amount of $294 thousand, with a net gain on disposals of assets relating to equipment, 
vehicles and scrap sales for the year in the amount of $90 thousand. The Authority recorded a net gain on assets held for sale of $387 
thousand relating to the materials of the Port Royal Railroad. 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Authority received approximately $6.5 million in contributed capital, spent approximately 
$23.2 million on the capital improvement program and spent $2.3 million on operating capital (meters, equipment and vehicles). 
Disposals of fully depreciated assets were recorded in the amount of $493 thousand, with a net gain on disposals of assets relating to 
equipment, vehicles and scrap sales for the year in the amount of $40 thousand. 

Additional information in changes in capital assets can be found in Note #6 of the financial statements.

Economic Outlook and Final Comments
Financial management strives to maintain a clear understanding of the utility’s overall financial condition and determine what actions 
are required to maintain fiscal stability in light of the future economic outlook. Through a well-defined financial management system 
including timely reporting, established control systems, and competent personnel, the Authority ensures the utilization of resources in 
the most effective and efficient manner, as well as the future security of those assets.

While the economic climate over the past several years has been challenging, the Authority has demonstrated its ability to operate 
a self-sustaining business enterprise that responds to the needs of its customers as well as creating value for the stakeholders, the 
community at large. The Authority continues its focus on sustainability and preservation. The Military Privatization contract continues to 
have a positive impact on the Authority and its operations. The Authority is optimistic that although growth has been slow over the past 
four years, it will still continue and development will gradually begin to expand as evidenced in the slight increase in capacity fees over 
prior year.

Questions concerning this report or requests for additional information should be directed to Sarah Linkimer, Controller, at 
843-987-9253 or at 6 Snake Road, Okatie, South Carolina, 29909-3937.
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BALANCE SHEETS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BALANCE SHEETS (continued)
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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June 30, 2011 and 2010

1. Description of Entity
The Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer Authority (the Authority) was established by an act of the General Assembly of the State of 
South Carolina on April 23, 1954. The Authority is a special purpose governmental entity engaged in business-type activities. The 
Authority provides water to various areas of Beaufort and Jasper Counties, South Carolina, and the three military installations, and 
wastewater services to several areas within the two counties.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is 
that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. Accordingly, the Authority’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP). 

The Authority applies all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting, offers the option of following 
all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards issued after November 30, 1989, unless the latter conflict with or contradict 
GASB pronouncements, or not following FASB standards issued after such date. The Authority has elected the option to not follow FASB 
standards after November 30, 1989. The Authority has adopted GASB Statements 33 through 53, and related interpretations issued 
through June 30, 2011. 

These GASB statements require the presentation of Management’s Discussion and Analysis which precedes the financial statements, 
in addition to several changes to the financial statements such as: (1) the classification of the Equity section of the balance sheet into 
Net Assets with categories of Invested in Capital Assets net of related debt, Restricted, and Unrestricted; (2) the statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net assets formatted to report changes in net assets in lieu of changes in retained earnings; and (3) additional 
note disclosures to the financial statements.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Authority is determined by its measurement focus. The transactions of 
the Authority are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. Therefore, all assets and all liabilities associated 
with the operations are included on the balance sheet. 

Operating/Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses are those that result from providing water and wastewater services. Non-operating revenues and 
expenses include capital, financing, investing and other activities not related to the provision of water and wastewater services.

Revenue Recognition and Receivables

All water and wastewater revenues are recognized on the accrual basis when the related services are provided and the earning process 
is complete. Services are provided to customers under a rate structure designed to produce revenue sufficient for operating and 
maintenance costs, capital outlay, debt service, reserves and debt service coverage.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Customer receivables represent various volume, availability, impact and special service fees earned, but not yet collected. Unbilled 
receivables have been estimated and accrued as revenue from the date of the last reading of the meters based on the billing cycle. 
Unbilled accounts receivable was approximately $1.69 million and $1.10 million as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The allowance 
for doubtful accounts is determined by the following assumptions regarding the aging report: (1) accounts over ninety (90) days are 
deemed 93% uncollectible and (2) accounts over sixty (60) days are deemed 50% uncollectible. Payment plan amounts included in 
the delinquent accounts, which are considered collectible based upon the date of last payment, are added back to the allowance. The 
allowance for doubtful accounts was $695 thousand and $655 thousand as of June 30 2011, and 2010, respectively. 

Budgetary Accounting

The Authority adopts flexible annual operating and capital budgets. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. The current 
operating budget details the Authority’s plans to earn and expend funds for charges incurred for operation, maintenance, certain interest 
and general functions, and other charges for the fiscal year. The Authority budgets depreciation expense based upon prior year actual 
and estimates of acquisitions and contributed capital. The capital budget details the plan to receive and expend cash capital contribution 
fees, special assessments, grants, borrowings and certain revenues for capital projects.

All unexpended and unencumbered appropriations in the operating budget lapse at the end of the fiscal year. No appropriation for a 
capital project in the capital budget lapses until the purpose for which the appropriation was made has been accomplished or abandoned. 

Management submits a proposed budget to the Authority’s Board of Directors prior to the May Board meeting. A budget is adopted 
by resolution prior to July 1. During the year, management is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within the 
Authority’s divisions.

Cash Equivalents, Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the statement of cash flows, include: restricted and unrestricted cash on hand or on 
deposit; interest in State Treasurer’s Pool; and certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and investments with a maturity of 
three months or less. 

Investments are reported at their fair value. The Authority is permitted to invest through various investment advisors in a pool 
managed by the South Carolina State Treasurer, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, and United States or State of South 
Carolina general obligations. 

Designated and Restricted Assets

Whereas restricted assets represent cash, investments and receivables maintained in accordance with bond resolutions, loan 
agreements, grant awards, and other resolutions and formal actions of the Authority or by agreement for funding certain debt service 
payments. Designated assets represent cash, investments, and receivables that have been designated formally and consistently by 
Board action for depreciation and contingency activities, and improvements and extensions to the utility systems. These funds are 
utilized to support the Board’s approved capital improvement program budget, which is generally approved every three (3) years; 
includes estimates of anticipated capacity fees and set aside revenues; and projects capital funding required. 

Capacity fees, or impact fees, which are held in water and wastewater capital funds, are considered designated assets. These fees are 
cash contributed capital received in exchange for the purchase of capacity in the system. The capacity certificate represents ownership 
of system capacity, and, as such, the Authority must ensure that the funds are utilized for growth infrastructure. Any receivables 
generated from extension of credit for capacity payments or construction reimbursements from front foot assessments are also 
considered designated. 

During fiscal year 2000, the Authority began accepting letters of credit from certain developers and commercial customers for the 
payment of capacity fees. Receivables for capital contributions under letters of credit were recorded in the amounts of $379,100 and 
$346,625, for fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, where the capacity certificate had been issued and the earnings 
process had been completed. 
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Inventories

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market.

Capital Assets

Property acquired with an initial individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life (i.e., generates an economic benefit) 
in excess of one year are recorded at cost. Major outlays for construction of capital assets and improvements are capitalized at cost. 
Maintenance and repairs that do not significantly extend the value or life of property, plant and equipment are expensed as incurred. 
During fiscal year 1999, the Authority began capitalizing meters as a result of using significantly more radio-read meters versus the less 
expensive standard meters. The Authority capitalizes meter transponder replacements for entire areas where the retrofit significantly 
adds to the estimated useful life of all meters for that development. 

Assets acquired through contributions from developers or other customers are capitalized at their estimated fair market value, if 
available, or at engineers’ estimated fair market value or cost to construct at the date of the contribution. Utility systems acquired from 
other governmental service providers are recorded at the purchase price, limited to fair market value. Internal engineering costs are 
capitalized to the extent of direct support and contribution to construction and expansion projects. Costs of studies that directly result in 
specific construction projects are capitalized.

Interest cost is capitalized on the construction of qualified assets, whether or not borrowings exist for such projects, to the extent of 
amounts funded by debt or operating results. Interest is not capitalized on project costs funded by contributed capital, such as grants, 
gifts and impact fees. Interest costs of tax-exempt borrowings are capitalized net of related investment earnings on the proceeds. 
Interest costs are not capitalized for small projects that will be constructed in less than six months or for those with estimated costs 
under $250,000 because these amounts are considered immaterial for purposes of interest capitalization.

Annualized depreciation expense, expressed as a percent of net depreciable capital assets, was 5.8% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2011 and 2010. The Authority utilizes the straight-line depreciation method and estimated useful lives of assets in service are as follows:

 Years

Source of supply equipment 15-50

Water treatment plant 10-50

Wastewater treatment plant 10-50

Transmission and distribution systems 10-50

Equipment 3-20

Structures and improvements, including buildings 10-50

Office furniture, equipment and vehicles 3-20

Meters 8

Capital Contributions

Contributions are recognized in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets when earned. Contributions include 
capacity fees; developer contributed utility systems, capital grants, and other supplemental support by other utilities and industrial 
customers and federal, state and local grants in support of system improvements. 
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Long-Term Obligations and Costs

Long-term obligations are reported at face value, net of applicable premiums and discounts. Premiums and discounts, issuance costs, 
and gains or losses on advance refunding and defeasances after June 30, 1994, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.

Compensated Absences

The Authority accounts for compensated absences by accruing a liability for employees’ compensation for future absences according 
to the guidelines of GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences. Compensated absences are classified as a current 
liability, because 1) each employee is eligible to “cash in” compensated absences up to $1,000 twice annually, 2) it is payable upon 
voluntary or involuntary termination, and 3) the use of accrued leave is unpredictable.

Claims and Judgments

These events and obligations are recorded on the accrual basis, when the event occurs and the obligation arises.

Net Assets

Net assets comprise the various net earnings from operating and non-operating revenues, expenses and contributions of capital. 
Net assets are classified in the following three components: invested in capital assets, net of related liabilities; restricted for capital 
activity and debt service; and unrestricted net assets. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of all capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of 
those assets; debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments is excluded from the determination. Restricted 
for capital activity and debt service consists of net assets that are constrained by external parties, such as lenders, grantors, contributors, 
laws, regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates, less any related liabilities. Unrestricted consists of all 
other net assets not included in the above categories.

General and Administrative Expense Allocations

For the purposes of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, general and administrative expenses were 
allocated 60% and 40% to the water and wastewater divisions for fiscal years 2011 and 2010. This allocation is based on the number of 
proportionate water to wastewater customers and is reviewed each year during the budgeting process. The allocation of 60% and 40% 
will remain for fiscal year 2012.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates are used to determine 
depreciation expense, the allowance for doubtful accounts and certain claims and judgment liabilities, among other accounts. Actual 
results may differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2010 financial statements to conform to the current year presentation.
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3. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
Deposits include demand deposits and certificates of deposit in financial institutions. The carrying (balance sheet) amounts were 
$32,181,289 and $27,833,075 at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The bank balances were $33,075,840 and $28,236,946 at June 
30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, demand deposits and investments were as follows:

JUNE 30, 2011 JUNE 30, 2010

Credit Risk

Investments of the Authority must comply with South Carolina Code Section 6-5-10, which states that the Authority may invest money 
subject to its control and jurisdiction in, obligations of the United States and agencies thereof, general obligations of the State of South 
Carolina or any of its political units, savings and loan associations to the extent that the same are insured by an agency of the federal 
government, certificates of deposit where the certificates are collaterally secured by the U. S. Treasury or its agencies, and repurchase 
agreements when collateralized by securities as set forth in this section. The provisions of South Carolina Code Section 6-5-10 do 
not impair the power of the Authority to hold funds in deposit accounts with banking institutions as otherwise authorized by law. All 
investments of the Authority were redeemable on demand without penalty as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and are, therefore, 
classified as cash and cash equivalents. 

All deposits that are not U. S. Treasury investment securities held in the Authority’s name are collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution’s agent in the Authority’s name. All investments of the Authority are rated Aaa by Moody’s and AAA by 
Standard and Poors. 

The following reconciles deposits and investments to cash and cash equivalents, and investments, as presented in the balance sheet::

JUNE 30
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5. Designated and Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of revenue bonds and notes, as well as resources set aside for their repayment or to satisfy certain restrictive 
covenants of the bond agreements, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by those 
covenants. The “debt service fund” accounts are used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next 
twelve months. The “debt service reserve fund” accounts are used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies 
in revenue bond debt service funds or to effect whole or partial redemption of the bonds. Bond construction funds are restricted for the 
purposes of funding capital projects. 

Designated assets are established by consistent Board action and are included in the funding sources available for Board approval of the 
capital improvement program budget. The “contingency and depreciation fund” accounts are used to accumulate resources to be used 
for contingencies and for improvements, betterments, and extensions of the system; the Authority establishes these amounts annually. 
The “capital projects fund” accounts are funds designated by Board approval of the capital projects budget. 

The components of designated receivables as of June 30 were as follows:

4. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable were composed of the following:

JUNE 30
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The components of the designated and restricted assets, and liabilities payable from designated and restricted assets as of June 30, 2011 
and 2010 were as follows:

6. Capital Assets
During 2011 the Authority capitalized interest of $6,231 on the Aquifer Storage and Recovery System (ASR3) project and $90,154 on the 
Military Consolidation project. Capitalized interest for construction reimbursement projects is determined at the repayment date and 
calculated based on the construction draws for the project, and added to the cost of the project at that time. No interest expense was 
capitalized for fiscal year 2010. 

Construction in progress decreased a net of approximately $14.1 million primarily as a result of the completion and capitalization of 
$13.8 million on the Military Consolidation Project, $5.2 million on the Military Group I ISM projects, and $3.6 million on the Aquifer 
Storage and Recovery System (ASR3). These projects account for 87% of total capitalizations in fiscal year 2011. Of the $6.9 million 
in construction in progress at the end of fiscal year 2011, $3 million is related to the Military phase II ISM projects, $800 thousand to 
wastewater pump station and control panel rehabs, and $700 thousand to Bluffton Parkway pipeline relocates. The Authority expended 
$12.2 million on capital assets related to construction projects during fiscal year 2011, with approximately $26 million completed and 
moved to producing assets.

38

JUNE 30, 2011

JUNE 30, 2010
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Capital asset activity during the prior two fiscal years was as follows:

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS 
Year ended June 30, 2011

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS 
Year ended June 30, 2010
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7. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt includes various bonds, loans and notes payable that have been issued or approved by the Authority for the 
improvement or acquisition of water and wastewater infrastructure, and defeasance of outstanding debt. General covenants, along 
with debt service requirements, are disclosed below. See Note 5, Designated & Restricted Assets, for a discussion of the accounts used in 
accounting for proceeds and reserves pledged as a result of the issuance of the various forms of debt. 

Revenue bonds and State Revolving Loan payables are collateralized by an irrevocable pledge of income and revenues derived from the 
operation of the systems. The revenues derived from the operation of the respective systems are to be used for expenses in connection 
with the administration and operation of the systems. 

 The Authority’s debt instruments contain various covenants and restrictions, which among other things, requires the Authority to 
provide certain financial information and meet certain financial tests. The Authority’s Bond Resolutions require that “Net Earnings” 
(as defined in the Bond Resolution) are equal to at least 110% of the annual principal and interest requirements of all series of bonds 
outstanding in that year. For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Authority’s “Net Earnings” were 172% and 179%, respectively, 
of its annual principal and interest requirements of all series of bonds. Management believes that the Authority was in compliance with 
all covenants and restrictions of all debt instruments at June 30, 2011 and 2010.

Revenue Bonds

Series 1999, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated November 1, 1999, were issued in the original 
principal amount of $9,400,000, to provide funds to acquire the City of Beaufort system and funds for capital improvement projects. 
Payments are due in semi-annual principal installments ranging from $143,000 to $375,000 through 2020, with interest at 5.16%, 
due March 1 and September 1. This bond was fully refunded in fiscal year 2010 with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 2000, Waterworks and Sewer System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds (Second Lien), dated January 13, 2000, 
were issued in the original principal amount of $9,444,000, taking advantage of the favorable interest rate to advance refund 
the Series 1992A and 1995 Bonds and provide funds for capital improvement projects. The refunding transaction resulted in an 
accounting loss of $712,143 when the net carrying value of the two bond issues were compared to the reacquisition price paid to 
defease those issues. This loss on refunding was recorded as a reduction in the carrying balance of the bonds payable and was 
amortized using the effective interest method through fiscal year 2013. Amortization was recorded in the amounts of $46,502 and 
$49,120 for fiscal years 2010 and 2009, respectively. The escrow agent reported that the 1992A bonds were called and redeemed 
March 1, 2002, and that the 1995 bonds were called and redeemed March 1, 2005. Payments are due in quarterly principal 
installments ranging from $60,000 to $385,000 through 2016, with interest at 5.24%, due March 1, June 1, September 1, and 
December 1. This bond was fully refunded in fiscal year 2010 with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bond.

Series 2001, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement and Refunding Bonds (Second Lien), dated December 1, 2001, were 
issued in the original principal amount of $47,140,000, taking advantage of the favorable interest rate to advance refund the Series 
1992B Bonds, to pay the amount outstanding under an Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement with First Union National Bank, 
and to provide funds for capital improvement projects, including the Purrysburg Water Treatment Plant. Proceeds in the amount 
of $4,884,267 were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service payments on the 
outstanding Series 1992B Bonds, which were called on March 1, 2002. The refunding transaction resulted in an accounting loss 
of $275,103 when the net carrying value of the two bond issues were compared to the reacquisition price paid to defease those 
issues. This loss on refunding was recorded as a reduction in the carrying balance of the bonds payable and is amortized using the 
effective interest method through fiscal year 2013. Amortization was recorded in the amounts of $16,093 and $19,511 for fiscal years 
2010 and 2009, respectively. The portion of these bonds related to the construction fund was refunded in fiscal year 2007 with the 
issuance of the 2006 revenue bonds, restating the bond principal amount due for the original refunding as of November 29, 2006, to 
$3,350,000. As restated, payments are due in annual principal installments ranging from $430,000 to $530,000 through 2013, with 
interest at 3.55% to 4.3%, due March 1, and September 1.
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Series 2006, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement and Refunding Bonds, dated November 28, 2006, were issued in the 
original principal amount of $58,750,000, taking advantage of the favorable interest rate to advance refund the Series 2001 Bonds 
and to provide funds for the Cherry Point Water Reclamation Facility capital improvement project. Proceeds in the amount of 
$43,710,291 (along with $526,645 of the Authority’s accrued debt service fund) were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent to provide all future debt service payments on the improvement portion of the 2001 Revenue Bonds. The refunding 
transaction resulted in a deferred amount on the refunding of $2,609,222, which was recorded as a reduction in the carrying balance 
of the bonds payable and is amortized using the effective interest method through fiscal year 2026, with amortization recorded 
in the amount of $88,779 and $178,977 for fiscal years 2010 and 2009, respectively. The new bonds were issued at a premium 
of $2,888,721, which is recorded as an increase in the carrying balance of the bonds payable and is amortized using the effective 
interest method through fiscal year 2031, with amortization recorded in the amount of $290,388 and $239,361 for fiscal years 2010 
and 2009, respectively. Payments are due in annual principal installments ranging from $525,000 to $7,110,000 through 2031, with 
interest at 4.0% to 5.0%, due March 1, and September 1.

Series 2010B, Waterworks and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, dated April 22, 2010, were issued in the original principal 
amount of $38,065,000, taking advantage of the favorable interest rate to refund the Series 1999 and 2000 Revenue Bonds; 
Series 1994, 1996, 1998, 1998B, 1993 (COB), 2000B, 2000C, 2000D, 2002A, 2002B, 2003A, 2003B, and 2003C State Revolving 
Fund Loans; and 2002 City of Hardeeville and 2004 Beaufort County School District Notes Payable. Proceeds in the amount of 
$5,991,206 (along with $128,239 of the Authority’s accrued debt service fund) were paid to Bank of America, N.A., the holder of the 
1999 Bond, to pay the principal, accrued interest, and redemption premium due on the bond as of April 22, 2010. Proceeds in the 
amount of $5,606,365 (along with $130,767 of the Authority’s accrued debt service fund) were paid to Wachovia Bank, the holder 
of the 2000 Bond, to pay the principal, accrued interest, and redemption premium due on the bond as of April 22, 2010. All State 
Revolving Fund Notes are held by the South Carolina Budget and Control Board. Proceeds of $26,597,332 (along with $494,328 
in debt service reserve funds and $2,239,955 of the Authority’s accrued debt service fund) were paid to US Bank, trustee, to pay 
the principal and accrued interested due on all refunded State Revolving Fund Notes as of April 22, 2010. Proceeds in the amount 
of $1,151,011 were paid to Branch Banking & Trust Co (BB&T), the holder of the 2002 City of Hardeeville Note Payable, to pay the 
principle, accrued interest, and premium due as of April 22, 2010. Proceeds in the amount of $966,938 were paid to the Beaufort 
County School District, as holder of the March 2004 note payable, to pay the principal and accrued interest due on the note as of 
April 22, 2010. The refunding transaction resulted in a deferred amount on the refunding of $490,213, which was recorded as a 
reduction in the carrying balance of the bonds payable and is amortized using the effective interest method through fiscal year 2023, 
with amortization recorded in the amount of $52,505 for fiscal year 2010. The new bonds were issued at a premium of $2,660,805, 
which was recorded as an increase in the carrying balance of the bonds payable and is amortized using the effective interest method 
through fiscal year 2023, with amortization recorded in the amount of $89,379 for fiscal year 2010. Payments are due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $1,060,000 to $4,820,000 through 2023, with interest at 2.5% to 5.0%, due March 1, and 
September 1.

State Revolving Loans Payable to the South Carolina State Budget and Control Board

Series 1994, Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, dated November 21, 1994, were issued in the original principal amount 
of $10,875,908 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Number 025-94-520-11) to provide funds for construction of 
the Cherry Point Wastewater Treatment Plant. Interest is accrued at 4%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of 
$198,147 through January 1, 2016. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B 
revenue bonds.

Series 1996, Waterworks and Sewer System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds, dated March 21, 1996, were issued in the original principal 
amount of $1,678,871 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Number 032-95-520-05) to provide funds for construction 
on the St. Helena Wastewater Treatment Plant. Interest is accrued at 4.25%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments 
of $31,258 through December 1, 2016. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 
2010B revenue bonds.
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Series 1998, Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, dated February 23, 1998, were issued in the original principal amount 
of $517,387 (SC Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund Number 2-004-97) to provide funds for construction of the aquifer storage and 
recovery project. Interest is accrued at 4.75%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $10,054 through June 1, 2018. 
In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 1998B, Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, dated June 12, 1998, were issued in the original principal amount 
of $5,967,213 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number 3-001-98-0720003-01) to provide funds for expansion of the 
Chelsea Water Treatment Plant. Interest is accrued at 4%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $108,716 through 
September 1, 2019. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 1993 (COB), Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Parity Bonds, originally dated 1993 of the City of Beaufort 
(COB), were assumed by the Authority as part of the City of Beaufort acquisition on November 1, 1999, original principal amount of 
$5,197,143 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Number 021-92-389-20). Interest is accrued at 4.25%, with principal and 
interest due in quarterly payments of $96,764 through October 1, 2014. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully 
refunded with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 2000B, Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, dated January 28, 2000, were issued in the original principal amount 
of $2,640,771 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number 3-006-99-0720003-03) to provide funds for construction of the 
Broad River Ground Storage Tank. Interest is accrued at 3.5%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $46,054 
through May 1, 2020. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B revenue 
bonds.

Series 2000C, Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, dated April 28, 2000, were issued in the original principal amount 
of $2,446,356 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number 3-007-99-0720003-02) to provide funds for construction of a raw 
water reservoir. Interest, in the amount of $6,731, was capitalized in 2002 when the project was substantially completed. Interest is 
accrued at 3.5%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $42,649 through May 1, 2021. In fiscal year 2010 this state 
revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 2000D, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated December 6, 2000, were issued in the original 
principal amount of $2,666,060 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Number 1-065-00-520-13) to provide funds for 
construction of the Rose Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant diversion. Interest, in the amount of $24,689, was capitalized in 2002 
when the project was substantially completed. Interest is accrued at 3.5%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments 
of $47,321 through July 1, 2021. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B 
revenue bonds.

Series 1990 (COH), Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Parity Bonds, originally dated 1990 of the City of 
Hardeeville (COH), were assumed by the Authority as part of the City of Hardeeville acquisition on January 25, 2002, original 
principal amount of $2,414,566 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Number 014-90-427-04). Funds were utilized to 
upgrade the Hardeeville Wastewater Treatment Plant. Interest is accrued at 4.5%, with principal and interest due in quarterly 
payments of $46,043 through January 1, 2012.

Series 2000 (COH), Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Parity Bonds, originally dated 1990 of the City of 
Hardeeville (COH), were assumed by the Authority as part of the City of Hardeeville acquisition on January 25, 2002, original 
principal amount of $875,085 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Number 1-067-00-427-04). Funds were utilized to 
upgrade the Hardeeville pump stations. Interest is accrued at 3.75%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $15,586 
through October 1, 2021.

Series 2001B, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated December 5, 2001, were issued in the 
original principal amount of $875,458, final draw amount of $814,410 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number 
3-011-02-0720003-06) to provide funds for improvements to the aquifer storage recovery system. Interest, in the amount of 
$6,005, was capitalized in 2003 when the project was substantially complete and payments became due on the loan. Interest is 
accrued at 3.75%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $14,623 through March 1, 2023.
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Series 2002A, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated March 4, 2002, were issued with an original 
principal amount of $4,590,900 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Number 1-077-02-520-16) to provide funds for 
improvement and upgrade of the Cherry Point Wastewater Treatment Plant to a water reclamation facility. Interest, in the amount 
of $46,045, was capitalized in 2003 when the project was substantially complete and payments became due on the loan. Interest is 
accrued at 3.75%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $82,648 through March 1, 2023. In fiscal year 2010 this 
state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 2002B, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated March 26, 2002, were issued with a final 
principal amount of $4,144,240 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number 3-012-01-0720003-05) to provide funds 
for waterlines at the Broad River crossing. Interest, in the amount of $42,003, was capitalized in 2004 when the project was 
substantially complete and payments became due on the loan. Interest is accrued at 4%, with principal and interest due in quarterly 
payments of $76,269 through November 1, 2023. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the 
issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 2003A, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated February 11, 2003, were issued with an 
original principal amount of $4,256,018, final draw amount of $4,067,317 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number 
3-015-02-0720003-13) to provide funds for the Purrysburg water transmission main. Interest, in the amount of $34,189, was 
capitalized in 2004 when the project was substantially complete and payments became due on the loan. Interest is accrued at 
3.75%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $73,105 through October 1, 2023. In fiscal year 2010 this state 
revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 2003B, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated February 28, 2003, were issued with an 
original principal amount of $1,176,665 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number 3-016-03-0720003-08) to provide 
funds for waterlines at the Chechessee River crossing. Interest, in the amount of $474, was capitalized in 2004 when the project 
was substantially complete and payments became due on the loan. Interest is accrued at 3.75%, with principal and interest due in 
quarterly payments of $20,981 through January 1, 2024. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the 
issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

Series 2003C, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated October 27, 2003, were issued with an original 
principal amount of $4,768,534, final draw amount of $4,558,972 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Number 
1-090-03-520-14) to provide funds to divert wastewater from the Bluffton Wastewater Treatment Plant to the Cherry Point 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. Interest, in the amount of $78,966, was capitalized in 2003 when the project was substantially 
complete and payments became due on the loan. Interest is accrued at 3.75%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments 
of $82,666 through July 1, 2024. In fiscal year 2010 this state revolving fund loan was fully refunded with the issuance of the 2010B 
revenue bonds.

Series 2004, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated June 25, 2004, were issued with an original 
principal amount of $24,781,500, final draw amount of $24,263,937 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Number 
X1-093-04-520-17) to provide funds for the Port Royal Island Water Reclamation Facility expansion. Interest, in the amount of 
$738,442, was capitalized in 2006 when the project was substantially complete and payments became due on the loan. Interest is 
accrued at 3%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $416,745 through August 1, 2026. 

Series 2005, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue Bonds, dated June 24, 2005, were issued with an original 
principal amount of $2,802,500 (SC Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Number X1-100-05-520-18), final draw amount 
of $2,701,734, to provide funds for the Battery Creek crossing and Beaufort River Outfall effluent line and force main related to the 
Port Royal Island Water Reclamation Facility. No draws were made as of the payment initiation date, October 1, 2005, and, therefore, 
no interest was capitalized. Interest is accrued at 3.25%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $46,061 through 
October 1, 2025.
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Series 2008, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue bonds, dated October 27, 2008, were issued with an 
original principal amount of $2,561,486, final draw amount of $2,440,331 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number 
3-034-08-0720003-14) to provide funds for the construction of a Sodium Hypochlorite system and new communications tower at 
the Chelsea Water Treatment Plant. Interest is accrued at 3.00%, with principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $40,676 
through May 1, 2029. 

Series 2009A, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue bonds, dated September 23, 2009, were issued with an 
original principal amount of $3,331,410 (SC Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Number X3-047-09-0720003-15) to provide 
funds for the construction of an aquifer storage and recovery system (ASR3) connected to the Authority’s water system. Interest in 
the amount of $6,231 will be capitalized as of the payment initiation date of September 1, 2010. Interest is accrued at 3.50%, with 
principal and interest due in quarterly payments of $58,188 through June 1, 2030.

Series 2010A, Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue bonds, dated February 26, 2010, were issued with an original 
principal amount of $13,773,549 (SC Drinking Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund Number 1-132-10-520-20) to provide 
funds for the Consolidation of the Military Wastewater Treatment Plants. Interest is accrued at 3.50%, with principal and interest 
due in quarterly payments of $240,124 through October 1, 2030.

Other Notes Payable:

2002 City of Hardeeville is a note payable issued from the Authority in the amount of $2,378,000, to the City of Hardeeville 
financing the purchase price for the Hardeeville water and wastewater system. Interest was accrued at 5%, with payments of 
principal and interest, ranging from $70,000 to $47,500, due quarterly through April 1, 2017. During 2005, the Authority negotiated 
to pay the City of Hardeeville the full amount and refinanced $1,776,660 on December 29, 2004, with Branch Banking & Trust 
Company (BB&T). Interest is accrued at 3.85% on this note and principal and interest payments of $183,176 are due annually on July 
1 through July 1, 2016. This note was paid in full in fiscal year 2010 with the issuance of the 2010B revenue bonds.

2003 Town of Port Royal Town of Port Royal is a note payable issued from the Authority in the amount of $3,935,700, to the Town 
of Port Royal financing the purchase price for the Town of Port Royal water and wastewater system. Interest is accrued at 5%, with 
payments of principal and interest in the amount of $109,530, due quarterly through June 30, 2015. 

2008 Department of the Navy is an unsecured note payable between the Authority and the US Department of the Navy, in the 
amount of $15,039,628 to finance the purchase price of the water and wastewater assets on the 4 military installations (Naval 
Hospital, Parris Island, Air Station and Laurel Bay). Interest is accrued at 5% with monthly payments of principal and interest in the 
amount of $90,505 through May 31, 2033.

2004 Beaufort County School District is a note payable issued from the Authority in the amount of $984,566, to the Beaufort 
County School District financing the James J. Davis Elementary School potable water system. The principal balance bears no  
interest until June 1, 2008, at which time the unpaid principal balance will bear interest at the rate of 3.85% to be paid in annual 
payments beginning June 1, 2009, and ending June 1, 2023. This note was paid in full in fiscal year 2010 with the issuance of the 
2010B revenue bonds.

2009 Bank of America BAN is a $5,000,000 bond anticipation note, dated September 24, 2009 with a fixed rate per annum of 
1.71%. The Series 2009 BAN was issued in anticipation of two State Revolving Fund bonds 2009A-ASR 3 and 2010A-Military 
Consolidation Project. Series 2009 BAN matured on September 24, 2010 when interest of $85,500 was due along with the principal 
balance of $5,000,000. This note was paid in full in fiscal year 2011.
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of the long-term liability activity for 2010 and 2011 is presented in the following table:

2010 2011
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Remaining debt service payments at June 30, 2011, including annual sinking fund payments, are as follows:

The components of the balance sheet entitled revenue bonds, state revolving fund, and notes payable from current liabilities, current 
liabilities payable from restricted assets, and long-term liabilities for 2010 and 2011 are as follows:
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8. Pension Plan
BJWSA is a member of the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a division of the State Budget and Control Board. The Plan is a 
cost sharing, multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, offering retirement and disability benefits, group life insurance benefits and 
survivor benefits. The SCRS grants cost-of-living adjustments on an ad hoc basis, subject to approval by the State Budget and Control 
Board. The provisions of the SCRS are established under Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report containing financial statements and required supplementary information for the SCRS is publicly available on their website at 
www.retirement.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to SCRS. 

All part-time and full-time, permanent employees must participate in the SCRS unless specifically exempted by statute or are eligible 
and elect to participate in the State Optional Retirement Plan (ORP). Mandatory employee contributions of 6.50% of earnable 
compensation were made through payroll deductions for fiscal years June 30, 2011 and 2010. All employers contribute at the actuarially 
required contribution rates. BJWSA, as a Class II employer, was required to contribute at a rate of 9.24%, 9.24%, and 9.24% of 
employee earnable compensation for fiscal years June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. For years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 
and 2009, wages of $9,154,916, $9,080,571, and $9,335,223 were subject to retirement, representing 97.49%, 97.35%, and 97.34%, 
respectively, of total gross salaries. Total salaries were $9,390,716, $9,327,810, and $9,590,682 for 2011, 2010 and 2009 respectively. 
BJWSA is also required to contribute 0.15% of earnable compensation to the system for group life insurance. BJWSA’s contribution 
for retirement and life insurance for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $859,649, $852,666, and $876,577 
respectively, which is 9.39%, 9.39%, and 9.39%, respectively, of covered salaries. BJWSA contributed 100% of its annual required 
contributions for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009.

An employee is vested after five years of service. Employees who retire at or after age 65 or have twenty-eight years of credited service 
are entitled to an annual retirement benefit for life equal to 1.82% of average final compensation times years of credited service. Vested 
employees may retire at age 55 with 25 years of service, reduced 4% for each year of service under 28; or at age 60 with a 5% reduction 
for each year under age 65. The System also provides for disability retirement, which is based on the projection of service to age 65 with 
an actuarial reduction.
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9. Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) are part of the total compensation offered to attract and retain the services of qualified 
employees. The Authority provides other postemployment benefits under a single-employer benefit plan. OPEB includes 
postemployment healthcare, as well as other forms of postemployment benefits (i.e., life insurance) when provided separately from 
a pension plan. Effective January 2005, the Authority authorized paying the total cost of individual health care insurance of “funded” 
retirees. Additional expenses for spouse, family, dental, etc., are not covered by the Authority. This plan does not issue separate financial 
statements. 

A retiring employee under the South Carolina Budget and Control Board State Retirement Plan, who has at least 5 years of service with 
the Authority and in a full time, regular position, is eligible to elect post retirement coverage. Benefit eligibility is as follows: 

• Retire at least age 60 with 5 years of service (if retire with less than 10 years of service, the participant will pay the full premium rates).

• Retire at least age 55 and 25 years of service (participant will pay full premium costs until age 60 or would have obtained 28 years of 
service, whichever is first, at which time they will pay the funded insurance rates).

• Retire with 28 years of service (participant will pay the full funded premium rates).

The medical plans offered provide hospital, medical and pharmacy coverage. Eligible retirees are able to select from five medical 
plans as follows:

• Medical Savings Plan

• Standard State Health PPO

• Medicare Supplement Health Plan

• Blue Choice HMO

• Cigna HMO

Funding Policy

The Authority contributed $93 monthly per retiree medical plan in fiscal year 2011. The Authority’s monthly per retiree contribution was 
$93, $93 and $93 for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008 respectively. Retirees pay the full cost of dental coverage. The postretirement 
medical benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis with inclusion in the annual expense budget. No assets have been segregated and 
restricted to provide postretirement benefits.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Authority’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) expense is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the 
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents 
a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year 2011 is as follows:

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal years 
2011, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:



58 BJWSA COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2011

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The below schedule shows the balance of the Authority’s actuarial accrued liability (AAL): 

Further, the valuation assumes that the Authority will continue to fund the liability on a pay-as-you-go basis and that its contribution for 
retiree benefits will remain the same.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative 
to the actuarial accrued liability. 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events 
in the future. This may include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions by the Authority are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made concerning the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. The actuarial cost method used in this valuation to determine 
the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) and the Actuarial Required Contribution (ARC) was the Projected Unit Credit Method. Under 
this method, for each participant, benefits earned to date are calculated based on projected benefits based on accrual to the date of 
expected retirement and the participants benefit service, when eligible. Costs are attributed from the date of hire to the date first eligible 
for full benefits. The individual’s service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefit earned at the end of the plan year less the 
beginning of the plan year. The individual’s actuarial accrued liability is the actuarial present value of benefits earned as of the beginning 
of the plan year. The Plan’s total annual normal cost and actuarial liability are the sum of the individual participant amounts. 

The following summarizes the assumptions used in valuing the AAL and benefits under the plan:
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10. Net Assets 
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. The net asset amounts for fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 
were as follows:

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Construction Commitments

In the normal course of its business, BJWSA has numerous contracts for construction and other activities related to the capital 
improvement program that it is committed to complete and pay. As of June 30, 2011, BJWSA had open contracts (purchase orders) of 
$6,492,976, including approximately $172,664 retainage payable, to be paid upon further progress by contractors. As of June 30, 2010, 
the Authority had open contracts (purchase orders) of $6,059,431, including approximately $456,233 retainage payable, to be paid 
upon further progress by contractors. 

Service Contracts

The Authority has entered into various long-term contracts to provide water and wastewater treatment services to retail and wholesale 
customers, including other local governments and utilities. Contracts vary as to the system’s capacity allocations and periodic revision in 
service rates.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from government agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by those agencies. The Authority has 
never experienced noncompliance and has never been subject to adjustments or refunds as a result of such audit.
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12. Risk Management
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; 
job-related injuries or illnesses to employees; natural disasters and employee health and accident. To insure against casualty risks the 
Authority is a member of the State of South Carolina Insurance Reserve Fund, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common 
risk management and insurance program for local governments in South Carolina.

The Authority acquires insurance from the State Accident Fund for job related injury and illness (Workers’ Compensation) to its 
employees. Through June 30, 2011, medical insurance coverage, encompassing health, dental, life and other medical benefits to 
employees and their dependents, was obtained via the State’s group insurance program with an independent insurance company. 

During 2011 and 2010, the Authority did not experience any significant uninsured claims. Accordingly, there was no liability or expense 
recorded for actual claims, and management does not believe any provision for unasserted claims is necessary.

13. Major Customers
Revenues from the largest three customers represented 6.22% and 5.98% of total operating revenues for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. No sales to a single major customer exceeded 10% of total operating revenues. 

14. Department of the Navy
In 1997 the Department of the Navy (Navy) solicited proposals for the privatization of the water and sewer utilities on the Marine Corp 
Air Station (MCAS), Parris Island Marine Corp Recruit Depot (PI), Laurel Bay Housing (LB), and Naval Hospital Beaufort (NH). After 
many years of negotiation, the Authority’s proposal was accepted by the Navy in late 2007. In February 2008 the Authority and the 
Navy signed a 50-year, $252 million contract to privatize the water and sewer utilities effective September 1, 2008. 

Under the terms of the contract, the Authority purchased the water and sewer facilities and agreed to provide operations and 
maintenance (O&M) services to the four installations for a set annual charge (Facility Charge). The Facility Charge is a flat monthly 
charge based on cost of service which can be re-determined every three years. On September 1, 2008, the Authority began providing 
O&M services to the four installations. The Authority recognized $1.22 million and $1.22 million in Military Retail Water revenue in fiscal 
years 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Authority recognized $2.78 million and $2.77 million in Wastewater revenue in fiscal years 2011 
and 2010, respectively. 

The Authority purchased the Navy water and sewer facilities for $15.3 million through a liability payable over 25 years at 5% interest. 
Payments began in September 2008, will end on August 31, 2033 and are made as a credit (purchase price credit) on the Navy’s 
monthly Facility charge invoice. During the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Navy liability was reduced by $351 thousand and 
$334 thousand via purchase price credits with an ending balance of $14.4 million and $14.7 million, respectively.

The Navy agreed to pay the Authority $42.1 million to bring the military water and wastewater systems up to industry standards. These 
construction projects are Initial System Modifications (ISMs) and represent a receivable for the Authority. The ISM’s will be reimbursed 
by the Navy in the following manner: (1) $8.97 million at commencement of contract which is the Navy’s share of the completed Port 
Royal Island Water Reclamation Facility (PRIWRF) plant expansion, (2) $7.32 million when consolidation construction is completed 
(paid September 2010) and (3) $11.99 million paid over 20 years at 4% interest with partial payments beginning in fiscal year 2012 and 
full payments starting in fiscal year 2015. The Authority did not receive any payments in fiscal year 2010, however the receivable and 
unearned revenue for the ISM’s were reduced by a price adjustment of $1.33 million resulting in a remaining receivable balance of $31.8 
million. During fiscal year 2011, the Authority received an ISM payment of $7.32 million reducing the receivable. Additionally during 
fiscal year 2011, the receivable and unearned revenue for the ISM’s were increased by a price adjustment of $959 thousand resulting in a 
remaining receivable balance of $25.4 million for fiscal year 2011. 

On September 1, 2008, the Authority recorded $42.1 million of unearned revenue for the ISM projects. During the fiscal year 2010 
$1.8 million in construction revenue was recognized for the phase I ISM projects completed. During the fiscal year 2011 the Authority 
recognized Military construction revenue of $13.8 million for the completion of the consolidation project and $4.9 million for completion 
of phase I ISM projects. Military construction revenue is non-operating revenue and appears as such on the financial statements.

.
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15. New Accounting Pronouncements
No new accounting pronouncements have an impact on the Authority’s financial statements.

16. Subsequent Events

Changes in Long-Term Debt
On September 23, 2011 the BJWSA Board of Directors approved 1) the “2011A Series Resolution” approving the financing of the 
acquisition and rehabilitation of the Tansi Village Sewer System through the borrowing of not exceeding $411,418 from the South 
Carolina Water Quality Revolving Fund and 2) the “2011B Series Resolution” approving the financing of the rehabilitation of four existing 
sewer collection systems through the borrowing of not exceeding $4,013,125 from the South Carolina Water Quality Revolving Fund. 
These two State Revolving Fund loans were officially closed on September 24, 2011.

On October 3, 2011, the South Carolina Water Quality Revolving Fund Authority, which is the State entity responsible for administering 
the State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans, issued the “FY2012 Amendment to all prior SRF Loan Policies” policy statement which changed 
certain provisions on prior SRF loans. First, any existing SRF loan with an interest rate of higher than 2.25% per annum will be reduced to 
2.25%. At the end of Fiscal Year 2011, the Authority has 8 SRF loans with interest rates of 3.00% to 3.75% that will be reduced. Second, 
if the SRF Loan borrower follows the steps established in the policies for debt service reserve fund requirements and has a current 
underlying bond rating or system rating in the “AA” or “Aa” category by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s, respectively, or higher, the debt 
service reserve fund requirement will be eliminated. At the end of Fiscal Year 2011, the Authority had $1.92M in debt service reserve 
funds that will be released. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

    

Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer Authority Governing Board 
Beaufort, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority (the “Authority”) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing 
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, 
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Authority’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing 
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Governing Board, others within the Authority, 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties.

Augusta, Georgia  
October 20, 2011

IN ACCORDANCE WITH
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The following system schedules and analysis are furnished solely as supplementary information and are not required by GAAP.

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year ended June 30, 2011  

(with comparative amounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010)

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA

NOTE: For purposes of comparison to budget, the actual data excludes developer capital contributions and grants which were not budgeted.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION
Year ended June 30, 2011

(with comparative amounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010)

NOTE: For purposes of comparison to budget, the actual data excludes developer capital contributions and grants which were not budgeted.
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Budget Summary
Operating revenues were $42.9 million, an increase of 5.9%, or $2.4 million, compared to prior year actual, and 2.7%, or $1.1 million, 
over budget. The revenue overage to budget is primarily due to increased civilian wholesale and residential water sales as a result of dry 
weather and increased demand. 

Total water operating revenues were $25.7 million, an increase of 7.7%, or $1.8 million, compared to prior year actual, and 4.4% or 
$1.1 million above budget. While retail revenue increased with the addition of new water customers (506 in fiscal year 2011 compared 
to projections of 300), the primary cause for the increase in water revenues was increased consumption. Average monthly water 
consumption increased from 13.66 kgals in fiscal year 2010 to 15.24 kgals in fiscal year 2011.

Total wastewater operating revenues were $17.2 million, an increase of 3.5%, or $585 thousand, over the prior year actual, and 0.3%, 
or $49 thousand, over budget. The slight increase compared to budget was due to an increase in residential sewer sales. While limited 
by the monthly residential wastewater cap, the increase in residential sewer sales directly correlates to the increase in water revenues 
during fiscal year 2011. 

Direct operational costs for water (excluding depreciation) were under budget 1.3% or approximately $166 thousand. Over budget 
expenditures for water were primarily related to the following functions and accounts:

• Transmission and distribution – $50 thousand over budget due primarily to meter maintenance, general equipment  
maintenance, and fuel.

• Franchise fees – $11 thousand over budget due to the increase in water sales.

Direct operational costs for wastewater (excluding depreciation) were under budget 1.6% or approximately $162 thousand. Over budget 
expenditures for wastewater were primarily related to the following functions and accounts:

• Wastewater disposal – $40 thousand over budget - $19 thousand grounds maintenance; $15 thousand structures maintenance; and 
$10 thousand chemicals.

• Laboratory and testing  – $38 thousand over budget largely due to additional lab sampling and supplies.

• Sludge management – $26 thousand over budget mainly due to disposal costs over budget by $21 thousand.

Although total operating expenses (excluding depreciation) increased $853 thousand, operating revenues increased $2.4 million 
compared to prior year, thus the Authority’s operating margin increased by 2% compared to prior year. As compared to the $1.85 
generated in fiscal year 2010, $1.88 was generated for every $1.00 expensed in 2011.

.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year ended June 30, 2011

(with comparative actual amounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010)

SCHEDULE OF NET EARNINGS FOR DEBT SERVICE AND DEBT COVERAGE
Years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010
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STATISTICAL CONTENTS

These schedules contain trend information showing the changes in the Authority’s  
financial performance over time, the affordability of current levels of outstanding debt  
and the Authority’s ability to manage debt in the future:

Schedule of Changes in Revenues and Expenses, and  71 
Debt Service Coverage Last – Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule of Changes in Net Assets – Last Ten Fiscal Years  72

Net Assets at End of Year Graph  72

Net Assets by Component – Last Ten Fiscal Years 73

Ratio Analysis  73

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type  74

Debt Service Coverage Analysis  74

These schedules contain infrastructure data which shows how  
the Authority’s financial reports relate to its activities:

Detailed Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets – Last Ten Fiscal Years  75

Schedule of Net Property, Plant, and Equipment – Last Ten Fiscal Years 75

These schedules contain information identifying the factors  
affecting the Authority’s ability to generate revenue:

Wholesale and Retail Water Sales Volume Historical Data – Last Ten Fiscal Years  76

Retail Water Sales Volume Historical Data by Area – Last Ten Fiscal Years  76

Wholesale Water Revenues by Area and Average Revenue  77  
per Thousand Gallons (kgal) – Last Nine Fiscal Years  

Retail Water Revenues by Area and Average Revenue  78 
per Thousand Gallons (kgal) – Last Nine Fiscal Years 

Wastewater Flows and Capacities by Plant – Last Eight Fiscal Years  79 

Wastewater Customer Base by Plant – Last Eight Fiscal Years  80

Wastewater Revenues by Area and Average Revenue 81 
per Thousand Gallons (kgal) – Last Eight Fiscal Years  

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators  
showing the environment in which the Authority operates:

Customer Statistics at Fiscal Year-End from 1997 82

Billings at Fiscal Year-End from 2000  82

Water Sales & Customer History Graph  83

Wastewater Sales & Customer History Graph  83

Water and Wastewater Ten-Year Rate Comparisons and Graph  84

Population/Per Capita Income Chart  85

Wage/Salary Employment Chart  85

Unemployment Rate Chart  85

Principal Employers  86

These schedules contain operational and service information to convey  
how the Authority’s financial reports relate to its services: 

Full-time Equivalent Employees by Function  87

Ten Largest Water Customers  88

Ten Largest Wastewater Customers  89

Insurance in Force  90
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CUSTOMER STATISTICS
Number of customers at fiscal year-end

BILLINGS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 
Reported in kgals (thousands of gallons)



WATER SALES & CUSTOMER HISTORY
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The following chart shows the change in rates for an average customer (defined as 7 thousand gallons per month residential water usage) 
from fiscal year 2003 to fiscal year 2012 Budget, utilizing the fiscal year 2003 through 2011 rates as adopted, and the budgeted rate 
effective July 1, 2011, for fiscal year 2012.

WATER RATE COMPARISONS 
Effective date

WASTEWATER RATE COMPARISONS 
Effective date

MONTHLY WATER & WASTEWATER BILL FOR 7KGAL RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER

$70.00
$80.00

$50.00
$50.00

$40.00
$30.00
$20.00
$10.00

20072006200520042003 2008 2009 2010

Water Only Wastewater Only Total Bill

$74.24$74.24
$70.24$70.24$70.24

$29.24

$45.00

2011

$74.24

$29.24

$45.00

Budget
2012

$78.22

$30.22

$48.00$45.00

$29.24$28.24$28.24

$42.00$42.00

$28.24

$42.00

$68.24

$28.24

$40.00

$64.35

$26.35

$38.00

$61.50

$26.50

$35.00



POPULATION/PER CAPITA INCOME
Last ten available years

WAGE/SALARY EMPLOYMENT
NUMBER OF JOBS BY COUNTY (COMPARED TO STATE)

Last ten available years
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ECONOMIC STATUS – UNEMPLOYMENT RATE
Last ten fiscal years
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PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current year and nine years ago

^Date latest information available. Source: Jasper County Government. N/A – Information not available.

*Date latest information available. Source: Beaufort Regional Chamber of Commerce. N/A – Information not available.
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FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
Last ten fiscal years
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User Name User's Service Or Business
2011 Billed 
Revenues

% of Total 2011 
Billed Revenues

1  SCE&G Regulated utility 351,020$ 

$ 

$ 

1.56%
2  Sun City Community Association Residential Community (IR) 139,098 0.62%
3  Bluffton House Apartments Multifamily residential 81,916 0.36%
4  Hampton Hall Club Residential Club (IR) 56,886 0.25%
5  Beaufort Memorial Hospital Hospital 0.23%51,913
6  Old South Apartments Multifamily residential 0.20%44,478
7  Waterford Apartments Multifamily residential 0.11%25,488
8  Palmetto Bluff Residential Community (IR) 0.11%25,221
9  City of Beaufort Governmental (IR) 0.10%22,429

10  Okatie Center Community Association (IR) 0.09%21,229
Other (including Bulk Customers) 21,667,288 96.35%
Total water revenues 22,486,966
IR - Denotes Irrigation service meters

Bulk Water Users:
Hilton Head PSD Public service district 1,199,031$ 5.33%
Parris Island Recruit Depot Military installation 600,638                2.67%
Fripp Island PSD Public service district 440,300 1.96%
Moss Creek/Water Oak Utility Private utility 328,292 1.46%
Laurel Bay Housing Military installation 263,476 1.17%
Callawassie CUC Private utility 213,855 0.95%
MCAS Beaufort Military installation 128,909 0.57%
Harbor Island Utilities 87,556Private utility 0.39%
Warsaw-Eustis-Oaks 59,359Private utility 0.26%
Naval Hospital Military installation 36,595 0.16%

3,358,011Total wholesale revenues 14.93%
Other water operating revenues 19,128,955

22,486,966Total water revenues, including other

NOTE: Customers under one contract (i.e., military installations) are considered one bulk customer in total number of bulk customers.
New military retail charge not included in Total Water Revenues.

TEN LARGEST WATER USERS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

Ten largest water users (not including bulk customers) and any user representing 5.0% or 
more of total annual billed revenues
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TEN LARGEST WASTEWATER USERS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

Ten largest wastewater users plus any user representing 5.0% or 
more of total annual billed revenues
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INSURANCE IN FORCE

Type of Coverage & 
Insurance Provider

Policy Number
Policy Period

Details of 
Coverage

Limits of 
Liability

COMMERCIAL CRIME BOND

Selective Insurance Co.  
of America

B6012126
1/23/11–1/23/2012

Employee dishonesty 
& theft of money and 
securities

$100,000 bond

$40,000 inside premise
$20,000 outside premise

DATA PROCESSING

SC State Budget &  
Control Board Insurance 
Reserve Fund

D130079712
1/24/11–1/24/2012

Computer hardware  
and software

$4,886,958
$250 or $1000 deductible

BUILDING AND PERSONAL PROPERTY

SC State Budget &  
Control Board Insurance 
Reserve Fund 

F130079712; 
F130079712A
1/24/11–1/24/2012

“All risk” coverage 
on real & personal 
property

$5,000,000 per accident
$100,000 per ordinance & law

$3,000 deductible

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY & COLLISION

SC State Budget  
& Control Board Insurance 
Reserve Fund 

L130079712;
C130079712
1/24/11–1/24/2012

Vehicle  
comprehensive,  
collision & liability

$1,000,000 each accident; 
$200 deductible for each 
comprehensive & $500  
for each collision; $1,000 
medical each person

INLAND MARINE (MOBILE EQUIPMENT)

SC State Budget &  
Control Board Insurance 
Reserve Fund 

M130079712
1/24/11–1/24/2012

Heavy equipment,  
trailers, pumps and 
generators

$604,390 each occurrence;  
Deductible is 2% with $500 
minimum

INLAND MARINE (WELLS & BRIDGE LINES)

SC State Budget &  
Control Board Insurance 
Reserve Fund 

M130079712A
1/24/11–1/24/2012

Wells & bridge lines $500  
each occurrence

GENERAL TORT LIABILITY

SC State Budget & Control 
Board – Insurance Reserve Fund

T130079712
1/24/11–1/24/2012

Person injured, reputation 
marred, property damaged

$1,000,000  
per occurrence

WORKER’S COMPENSATION

State Accident Fund 10-064144-8
1/1/11–12/31/2011

Employee injured  
on the job

Statutory coverage pursuant 
to Article 1, Chapter 7, title  
42 of the SC Code of Laws

POLLUTION LEGAL LIABILITY

Chartis Causality Company 7092791
8/1/11–8/01/2016

Environmental 
liability

$25,000 deductible each 
incident & $10,000,000 limit  
per incident

COMMERCIAL LINES POLICY

Philadelphia Insurance 
Companies

PHSD638256
6/1/11–6/01/2012

D&O liability & 
employment practices

$1,000,000 each policy period & 
10,000 retention for each claim




